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2019
48,500,422 .82 100.95
(458,268.07) (0.95)
48,042,154.75
¢ 5210 ) 100.00
2019
45,418,662.38 93.65
711,481.98 1.47
73,882.73 0.15
46,204,027.09 95.27
2,296,395.73 4.73
48,500,422.82
(5269 ) 100.00
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2019
Western Asset Bank Loan
1 | Master Fund (Multi- 4,204,083.77 10.788 | 45,354,792.61 11.537 | 48,500,422.82 | 100.95
Currency)
2019
7 7))
1 | JANE STREET GROUP TL B 1L .4024 | 2022/8/25 735,650.74 |0.998 734,315.44 | 0.997 733,201.02 | 1.51
2 | ALMONDE INCTL B 1L .9024 | 2024/6/13 606,805.14 |0.997 604,731.33 | 0.983 596,641.15 | 1.23
3 | BASS PRO GROUP LL TL B 1L .4024 | 2024/9/25 602,985.15 |0.994 599,220.52 | 0.949 572,082.16 | 1.18
4 | REGIONALCARE HOSP TL 1L .7691 | 2025/11/16 536,774.69 |0.996 534,654.27 | 1.006 540,043.65 | 1.11
5 | MPHACQUISITIONHTL B 1L .0799 | 2023/6/7 552,472.36 |0.990 547,046.50 | 0.972 536,981.04 | 1.11
6 | CITADEL INVESTMEN TL B 1L .9024 | 2026/2/22 518,600.00 |0.995 516,160.14 | 1.008 522,489.50 | 1.08
7 | SECURUS TECHNOLOG TL 1L .8299 | 2024/11/1 564,648.64 10.988 557,617.71 | 0.915 516,653.51 | 1.07
8 | VERSCEND HOLDING TL B 1L .9024 | 2025/8/10 497,122.24 |0.999 496,627.05 | 1.006 500,224.28 | 1.03
9 | IMMUCOR INC TL B3 1L .3299 | 2021/6/15 490,731.56 |0.971 476,418.32 | 0.999 490,427.31 | 1.01
10 | TRAVELPORT FINANC TL 1L .5413 | 2026/3/18 500,000.00 |0.981 490,490.23 | 0.975 487,250.00 | 1.00
11 | PROJECT ALPHA INT TL B 1L .5600 | 2024/4/26 460,000.00 [0.991 455,683.82 | 1.001 460,381.80 | 0.95
12 | CHG HEALTHCARE SE TL 1L .4024 | 2023/6/7 455,557.49 |1.001 455,874.49 | 0.999 455,329.71 | 0.94
13 | RESOLUTE INVESMEN TL 1L .5799 | 2022/4/30 447,575.72 |1.003 449,047.93 | 1.004 449,254.13 | 0.93
14 | HYPERION INSURANC TL B 1L .9375 | 2024/12/20 447,814.34 |0.993 444,890.13 | 1.000 447,720.30 | 0.92
15| INTRAWEST RESORTS TL B 1L .4024 | 2024/7/31 443,398.48 |0.997 442,190.87 | 1.002 444,134.52 | 0.92
16 | US RENAL CARE INC TL B 1L .4375 | 2026/6/14 450,000.00 |0.980 441,127.74 | 0.983 442,125.00 | 0.91
17 | BIOSCRIP INC FRN 8/20 .5200 | 2020/8/15 416,000.00 |0.997 414,618.37 | 1.045 434,724.14 | 0.90
18 | ANCESTRY.COMOPER TL B 1L .6600 | 2023/10/19 431,879.09 |0.998 431,022.04 | 1.001 432,203.00 | 0.89
19 | PHOENIX GUARANTOR TL B 1L .8795 | 2026/2/12 426,497.02 |0.992 423,262.78 | 1.006 429,252.19 | 0.89
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C77)
20| CWGS GROUP LLCTL B 1L .1524 | 2023/11/8 447,624.97 10.998 446,669.27 | 0.939 420,489.94 | 0.87
21| GREENHILL & CO INTLB 1L .5750 | 2024/4/5 420,000.00 [0.997 418,682.27 | 0.998 419,210.40 | 0.86
22 | KWOR ACQUISITION TL 1L .4024 | 2026/5/31 418,181.82 10.990 414,066.35 | 0.998 417,136.37 | 0.86
23| DIGICERT HOLDINGS TL 1L .4024 | 2024/10/31 415,702.81 10.997 414,640.62 | 1.001 416,288.95 | 0.86
24 | AIRMEDICAL GROUP TL B 1L .5641 | 2022/4/28 427,906.30 10.994 425,258.19 | 0.969 414,713.95 | 0.86
25| GLOBALTRANZ ENTER TL B 1L .3141 | 2026/5/15 421,282.05 10.981 413,112.95 | 0.960 404,430.77 | 0.83
26 | RADNET MANAGEMENT TL B 1L .8300 | 2023/7/1 402,876.76 10.999 402,523.35 | 0.998 402,119.35] 0.83
27 | NEXSTAR BROADCAST TL B 1L .0000 | 2026/6/20 400,000.00 |0.995 398,000.00 | 1.000 400,040.00 | 0.82
28| PLUTO ACQUISITION TL 1L .2776 | 2026/6/18 400,000.00 10.990 396,054.96 | 0.989 395,500.00 | 0.82
29 | HUDSON RIVER TRAD TL B 1L .8299 | 2025/4/3 389,020.10 |0.999 388,548.35 | 1.006 391,443.70 | 0.81
30 | ALBANY MOLECULAR TL 1L .6524 | 2024/8/31 393,000.00 |1.007 395,673.19 | 0.990 388,904.94 | 0.80

2019

2019

2019
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2019
2014 25,251,333.80 2,743,305 8.91 968
2015 19,947,064.22 2,167,049 6.21 675
2016 5,009,096.97 544,188 5.24 569
2017 6,452,737.43 701,025 6.32 687
2018 5,054,854.76 549,159 5.74 624
2010 3,655,149.47 397,095 4.43 481
2018 4,056,493.08 440,697 4.51 490
4,065,428.00 441,668 4.62 502

10 4,396,473.82 477,633 4.92 535

11 4,135,532.20 449,284 4.62 502

12 3,981,360.01 432,535 4.45 483

2019 4,284,421.71 465,460 4.78 519
4,095,103.64 444,892 4.66 506

3,655,149.47 397,095 4.43 481

3,626,919.56 394,029 4.41 479

3,611,871.29 392,394 4.39 477

3,671,175.58 398,837 4.45 483

3,740,731.79 406,393 4.53 492
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2014 166,595,904.52 18,098,979 9.78 1,062
2015 131,829,395.83 14,321,946 9.24 1,004
2016 72,217,688.22 7,845,730 8.27 898
2017 75,330,306.02 8,183,884 8.81 957
2018 52,612,781.90 5,715,853 8.54 928
2019 29,873,852.44 3,245,495 8.21 892
2018 44,210,834.17 4,803,065 8.49 922
42,534,118.84 4,620,907 8.48 921

10 41,497,365.50 4,508,274 8.43 916

11 37,347,327.76 4,057,414 8.31 903

12 34,013,152.33 3,695,189 8.06 876

2019 32,673,288.21 3,549,626 8.22 893
31,020,090.55 3,370,023 8.29 901

29,873,852.44 3,245,495 8.21 892

29,158,689.96 3,167,800 8.29 901

27,604,233.54 2,998,924 8.24 895

26,093,332.86 2,834,780 8.20 891

25,967,205.80 2,821,077 8.21 892
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2014 7,844,029,971 9,737
2015 6,131,857,300 9,185
2016 3,276,500,241 8,165
2017 2,624,491,704 8,580
2018 1,948,310,730 8,144
2019 1,481,747,818 7,593
2018 1,776,727,712 8,001
1,765,896,226 7,982

10 1,697,739,096 7,907

11 1,610,176,580 7,774

12 1,540,426,160 7,522

2019 1,523,788,270 7,638
1,514,335,892 7,684

1,481,747,818 7,593

1,471,726,157 7,646

1,454,470,383 7,578

1,398,084,419 7,525

1,379,458,072 7,511
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2014 14,679,702.77 1,094,959 9.83 733
2015 16,779,113.92 1,251,554 9.31 694
2016 13,756,444 .90 1,026,093 8.22 613
2017 18,102,438.42 1,350,261 8.60 641
2018 10,183,805.08 759,610 8.10 604
2019 8,517,667.66 635,333 7.54 562
2018 9,742,727_87 726,710 7.93 591
9,712,757.64 724,475 7.90 589

10 9,134,055.85 681,309 7.83 584

11 8,824,790.13 658,241 7.70 574

12 8,533,171.86 636,489 7.44 555

2019 8,667,077.95 646,477 7.56 564
8,605,377.52 641,875 7.62 568

8,517,667.66 635,333 7.54 562

8,269,919.31 616,853 7.60 567

8,215,044 .37 612,760 7.55 563

8,169,962.41 609,397 7.51 560

8,166,991.32 609,176 7.51 560

2013 27 2014 31
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2019 2019
0.60 4.86
0.36 2.49
360 2,490

0.48 3.87
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2013 27 2014 31 2.10
2014 2015 31 19.53
2015 2016 31 3.70
2016 2017 31 34.35
2017 2018 31 2.22
2018 2019 31 10.98
2013 27 2014 31 220
2014 2015 31 0.61
2015 2016 31 6.49
2016 2017 31 10.88
2017 2018 31 1.02
2018 2019 31 0.35
2013 27 2014 31 L.
2014 2015 31 0.74
2015 2016 31 7.08
2016 2017 31 9.49
2017 2018 31 0.89
2018 2019 31 2-35
2013 27 2014 31 4.90
2014 2015 31 2.03
2015 2016 31 5.16
2016 2017 31 11.92
2017 2018 31 1.16
2018 2019 31 0.00

100x%
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6,041,035 3,206,316 2,834,719
(6,041,035) (3.206,316) (2.,834,719)
1,953,773 1,574,700 3,213,792
(1,953,773) (1,574,700) (3,213,792)
164,027 2,421,272 956,547
(164,027) (2,421,272) (956,547)
233,560 168,903 1,021,204
(233,560) (168,903) (1,021,204)
38,397 179,321 880,280
(38,397) (179,321) (880,280)
71,922 127,310 824,892
(71,922) (127,310) (824,892)
21,312,597 4,274,968 17,037,629
(21,312,597) (4,274,968) (17,037,629)
4,946,728 7,740,683 14,243,674
(4,946,728) (7.740,683) (14,243,674)
899,139 6,405,626 8,737,187
(899,139) (6,405, 626) (8,737,187)
2,841,276 3,016,257 8,562,206
(2.,841,276) (3,016,257) (8,562,206)
563,405 2,967,862 6,157,749
(563,405) (2,967,862) (6,157,749)
33,269 2,583,143 3,607,875
(33,269) (2,583,143) (3,607,875)
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871,003 65,429 805,574
(871,003) (65,429) (805,574)
256,173 394,182 667,565
(256,173) (394,182) (667,565)
82,584 348,863 401,286
(82,584) (348,863) (401, 286)
44,498 139,884 305,900
(44,498) (139,884) (305,900)
11,604 78,257 239,247
(11,604) (78,257) (239,247)
2,897 46,990 195,154
(2.,897) (46,990) (195,154)
1,642,211 135,611 1,506,600
(1,642,211) (135,611) (1,506,600)
398,746 102,821 1,802,525
(398, 746) (102,821) (1,802,525)
155,844 284,770 1,673,599
(155,844) (284,770) (1,673,599)
749,339 316,925 2,106,013
(749,339) (316,925) (2,106,013)
39,469 888,217 1,257,265
(39, 469) (888,217) (1,257,265)
2,876 130,195 1,129,946
(2,876) (130,195) (1,129,946)
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2019 31

2019 31
4,718,992 53,460,993 5,808,002
100,693 10,939
34,427 3,740
53,596,113 5,822,682
383,399 41,652
247,901 26,932
110,283 11,981
138,113 15,005
879,696 95,570
52,716,417 5,727,112
6,050,279 1,129,946 5.354 582
3,655,686 /824,892 4.432 481
13,384,590 /195,154 68.585 7,451
29,625,862 /3,607,875 8.211 892
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2019 31

3,990,663 433,546
(910,528) (98,920)
3,080,135 334,626
546,886 59,414
79,910 8,681
27,725 3,012
67,232 7,304
721,753 78,411
2,358,382 256,215
(1,269,134) (137,879)
8,380 910
(2,275,549) (247,216)
(3.536,303) (384,184)
(793,218) (86,175)
70 8
(42,004) (4,563)
(835,152) (90,731)
(4,371,455) (474,915)

(2,013,073) (218,700)
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2019 31

2,358,382 256,215
(3,536,303) (384,184)
(835,152) (90,731)
(2,013,073) (218,700)
(491,788) (53,428)
(602,209) (65,424)
(702,558) (76,326)
(1,777,875) (193,148)
(3,574,430) (388,326)
(25,528,840) (2,773,453)
(31,116,343) (3,380, 480)
83,832,760 9,107,591

52,716,417 5,727,112
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3.5
Tokyo Stock Exchange
2019 31
2019 31
six month period end year end
the end of the six month period the end of the year
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2019 31
2019 4 2 “I"g{g":ﬂ aifg‘z;fy pf‘cco' AUD 8,533,827 USD 6,085,241 23,239
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 12,951,489 ysp 3,348,292 20,315
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 18,577,777 ysp 3,484,068 (4,839)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 2,139,833 ysp 552,429 2,584
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 2,139,833 ysp 549,140 (706)
2019 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 198,600  ysp 50,000 (931)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International Jpy  1,491,561,505  ysp 13,525,210 49,477
89,139
2019 4 2 HSBC Bank plc AUD 1,306,950 USD 937,497 (9,106)
2019 4 2 “I"ﬁ;giﬂ a,i}‘ﬁg;fypf‘ CCO' AUD 7,226,877 USD 5,184,629 (51,018)
2019 4 30 “fg;giﬂaifgzgfypf‘cco' AUD 8,533,827 USD 6,088,310 (22,718)
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 13,264,633 USD 3,548,211 (139,767)
2019 4 2 Citibank, N.A. BRL 13,264,633 USD 3,404,068 4,373
2019 5 3 Citibank, N.A. BRL 12,338,689 USD 3,182,166 (17,927)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 2,139,833 USD 572,056 (22,211)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International BRL 2,139,833 USD 549,139 705
2019 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 1,441,523 USD 371,718 (2,042)
2019 4 2 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,099,253,942 USD 9,982,020 (50,647)
2019 4 26 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,491,561,505 USD 13,550,460 (42,962)
2019 4 2 UBS AG JPY 392,307,563 USD 3,562,886 (18,525)
(371,845)
(282,706)
AUD
BRL
JPY
usD
7,500
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10,000
10,000
0.80
0.05
2019 31
2019 31

2,876 16,376 71,922 352,639 2,897 208,476
(130,195) (743,601) (127,310) (591,867) (46,990) (3,354,135)
(127,319) (727,225) (55,388) (239,228) (44,093) (3.145,659)

33,269 279,358 110,964 856,849

(2,583,143) (21,696,086) (2,887,638) (26,385,689)

(2,549,874) (21,416,728) (2,776,674) (25,528,840)
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2019 31
6.216 5.746 76.594 8.548
() 0.197 0.166 2.458 0.292
(0.650) (0.800) (7.224) (0.269)
(0.453) (0.634) (4.766) 0.023
(0.409) (0.680) (3.243) (0.360)
5.354 4.432 68.585 8.211
® (7.29) (11.03) (6.22) 0.27
2.40 2.40 2.40 2.38
3.44 3.43 3.44 3.46
@
@
2019 31
@
100,693
(€}
383,399
€))
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31

(2,275,549)

(42,004)

(26,195,512)
52,286,432
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Goldman Sachs International @
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc®

o
@

Citibank, N.A.®

Goldman Sachs International®

HSBC Bank plc®

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc®
UBS AG®™

@
@
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100,693 383,399
100,693 383,399
@)
24,688 (24,688)
52,766 (52,766)
23,239 (23,239)
100,693 (100,693)
)
162,533 (24,688) 137,845
119,499 (52,766) 66,733
9,106 9,106
73,736 (23,239) 50,497
18,525 18,525
383,399 (100, 693) 282,706
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2019 31
- 1.1%
- 0.1%
- 0.1%
$ 100,000 Navios Maritime Acquisition Corp./Navios
Acquisition Finance US Inc. 144A 8.125% 2021 11 15 101,275 79,501
101,275 79,501
- 1.0%
- 0.8%
416,000 BioScrip Inc. First Lien Note ~ 9.500 2020 8 15 413,295 434,720
- 0.2%
90,225 Northern 0Oil and Gas Inc. PIK 9.500 2023 5 15 93,827 93,834
507,122 528,554
608,397 608,055
- 96.6% ~
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
280,075 Ventia Deco LLC 2017 Refinancing Term B 6.101 2022 5 20 278,543 280,075
278,543 280,075
- 2.5%
- 0.5%
287,079 Garda World Security Corp. New Incremental Term
B # 0.000-8.000 2024 5 24 285,378 285,164
- 0.5%
278,600 NorthRiver Midstream Finance LP Initial Term B 6.047 2025 10 1 277,951 278,252
- 0.6%
299,870 Stars Group Holdings BV USD Term # 0.000-6.101 2025 7 10 300,055 299,753
- 0.4%
209,282 MEG Energy Corp. Initial Term 6.000 2023 12 31 209,953 208,497
- 0.5%
257,605 Four Seasons Hotels Ltd. Restated Term 4.499 2023 11 30 258,257 255,961
1,331,594 1,327,627
- 1.0%
- 1.0%
179,550 Numericable U.S. LLC USD Incremental Term 6.484 2026 8 14 175,467 172,219
311,325 Numericable U.S. LLC USD Term B-11 5.299 2025 7 31 309,225 290,993
84,198 Numericable U.S. LLC USD Term B-12 6.171 2026 1 31 83,498 79,651
568,190 542,863
568,190 542,863
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
100,000 UnityMedia Hessen GmbH & Co. KG Senior
Facility B 0.000-4.734 2025 9 30 101,604 99,179
101,604 99,179
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
162,959 Avolon TLB Borrower 1 (US) LLC Term B-3 4.488 2025 1 15 160,531 161,912
160,531 161,912
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- 0.9%
- 0.9%
$ 500,000 Travelport Finance (Luxemboug) Term # 0.000% 2025 4 27 490,000 488,440
490,000 488,440
- 1.0%
- 0.4%
215,000 Ziggo Secured Finance Partnership Term E 4.984 2025 4 15 214,605 209,758
- 0.6%
330,000 Starfruit Finco BV Initial Term 5.740 2025 8 31 328,468 325,769
543,073 535,527
0.2%
— 0.2%
79,448 EG America LLC First Lien Term B # 6.601 2025 2 6 79,632 77,727
39,600 EG Dutch Finco BV Facility B (USD) 6.601 2025 2 7 39,808 38,742
119,440 116,469
119,440 116,469
- 89.9%
- 1.4%

9,827 Transdigm Inc. 2018 New Tranche E 4.999 2025 5 30 9,862 9,586
178,555 Vertex Aerospace Services Corp.Initial Term 7.249 2025 6 29 177,760 179,056
338,300 WP CPP Holdings LLC First Lien Initial Term 6.510 2025 4 30 337,564 336,291
200,000 WP CPP Holdings LLC Second Lien Term 10.510 2026 4 30 198,227 199,500

723,413 724,433
-2.3%
198,731 Altra Industrial Motion Term B # 0.000-4.499 2025 9 26 199,032 195,916
216,419 American Axle & Manufacturing Inc. Tranche B
Term # 0.000-4.740 2024 4 6 217,693 211,866
820,000 Panther Bf Aggregator 2 First Lien Term B # 0.000 2026 3 18 811,800 811,780
1,228,525 1,219,562
- 4.3%
179,547 AqGen Ascensus Inc. Third Amendment
Replacement Term 5.993 2022 12 5 176,913 176,742
150,000 Deerfield Dakota Holding LLC 2019 Incremental
Term 6.489 2025 2 13 149,261 149,438
200,000 Edelman Financial Center First Lien Term B # 0.000 2025 7 19 201,500 201,000
269,325 Edelman Financial First Lien Term # 0.000 2025 7 19 269,955 268,145
309,221 Focus Financial Partners LLC First Lien Term B # 0.000 2024 7 3 308,436 308,318
109,689 Guggenheim Partners Guggpa First Lien Term # 0.000 2023 7 22 109,689 109,878
197,504 Jane Street Group LLC New Term 5.499 2022 8 25 197,395 196,759
279,671 LPL Holdings, Inc. Tranche B Term # 0.000-4.737 2024 9 23 279,485 277,918
610,000 VFH Parent LLC Initial Term 6.126 2026 3 1 609,884 611,903
2,302,518 2,300,101
- 1.4%
307,725 American Traffic Solutions Inc. First Lien
Initial Term 6.249 2025 2 28 308,614 308,014
220,000 Concrete Pumping Holdings Inc. Initial Term # 0.000-10.500 2025 11 14 213,942 213,950
238,200 Ply Gem Midco Inc. Initial Term 6.547 2025 4 12 237,175 227,481
759,731 749,445
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- 2.9%
304,808 Charter Communications Operating, LLC (aka
CCO Safari LLC) Term B # 0.000-4.500% 2025 4 30 306,186 303,146
223,390 CSC Holdings LLC 2017 Refinancing Term 4.734 2025 7 17 223,792 217,582
694,750 CSC Holdings LLC January 2018 Term 4.984 2026 1 25 691,792 680,744
160,000 Intelsat Jackson Holdings B3 Term First Lien # 0.000 2023 11 27 159,600 157,299
190,000 Virgin Media Bristol LLC K Facility 4.984 2026 1 15 189,605 188,117
1,570,975 1,546,888
- 0.2%
130,661 PQ Corp. Third Amendment Tranche B-1 Term # 0.000-5.244 2025 2 8 130,490 129,354
- 0.8%
428,925 Brookfield WEC Holdings Inc. First Lien Initial
Term 6.249 2025 8 1 429,187 428,981
- 5.4%
133,270 Advantage Sales & Marketing Inc. First Lien
Initial Term # 0.000-5.749 2021 7 23 129,482 113,780
267,850 BrightView Landscapes LLC Initial Term # 0.000-5.000 2025 8 15 267,476 266,840
577,681 Crossmark Holdings Inc. First Lien Term 8.000 2019 12 20 577,802 162,230
289,270 EVO Payments International LLC First Lien Term 5.750 2023 12 22 288,917 289,090
422,430 Prime Security Services Borrower, LLC (aka
Protection 1 Security Solutions) Term B-1 5.249 2022 5 2 421,117 418,809
526,402 Securus Technologies Holdings Inc. Initial Term
(First Lien) # 0.000-7.000 2024 11 1 522,001 522,490
62,216 ServiceMaster Co. LLC Tranche C Term 4.993 2023 11 8 62,152 62,137
463,575 TKC Holdings Inc. First Lien Initial Term 10.500 2023 2 1 459,921 455,006
331,193 Trans Union LLC 2017 Replacement Tranch B-3 4.500 2023 4 10 331,245 328,680
868 Trans Union LLC 2018 Incremental Term B-4 4.500 2025 6 19 867 858
242,305 World Triathlon Corp. Initial Term 6.010 2021 6 25 242,305 241,699
3,303,285 2,861,619
- 4.4%
138,950 American Greetings Corp. Initial Term 6.999 2024 4 6 136,802 137,213
289,275 Atlantic Aviation FBO Inc. Term 6.250 2025 12 6 286,479 291,800
99,750 Champ Acquisition Corp. Initial Term 8.101 2025 12 19 96,868 99,251
461,975 CHG Healthcare Services Inc. New Term 5.499-5.744 2023 6 7 462,323 459,471
120,676 CRCI Longhorn Holdings Inc. First Lien Closing
Date Term 5.999 2025 8 8 120,127 118,413
365,384 Kingpin Intermediate Holdings LLC 2018
Refinancing Term # 0.000-0.060 2024 7 3 364,460 365,377
226,576 Party City Holdings Inc. 2018 Replacement Term 5.000 2022 8 19 226,303 225,244
35,932 Pearl Intermediate Parent LLC Delayed Draw First
Lien Term ! 5.236 2025 2 14 35,867 34,045
159,508 Pearl Intermediate Parent LLC Delayed Draw First
Lien Term # 0.000 2025 2 14 159,239 151,134
139,019 TOMS Shoes LLC Initial Term 8.000 2020 10 30 135,211 109,130
388,050 Vetcor Professional Practices LLC First Lien
Initial Term 5.499 2025 7 2 386,296 378,349
2,409,975 2,369,427
- 1.4%
309,211 Citco Funding LLC First Lien Term # 0.000 2023 9 28 308,052 307,473
448,788 Resolute Investment First Lien Term # 0.000 2022 4 30 450,471 449,066
758,523 756,539
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- 2.3%
339,432 Calpine Corp. Term # 0.000-5.110% 2024 1 15 333,602 336,591
184,226 Eastern Power LLC Term B 6.249 2023 10 2 184,873 183,651
218,600 Panda Temple Power LLC Second Lien Term
Non-PIK 10.482 2023 2 7 214,641 218,235
22,135 Panda Temple Power LLC Second Lien Term PIK 10.482 2023 2 7 21,734 22,098
123,628 Terra-Gen Finance Co. LLC # 0.000-6.490 2021 12 9 135,831 109,719
383,190 Vistra Operations Co. LLC Initial Term B-1 4.499 2023 8 4 381,329 379,550
1,272,010 1,249,844
- 2.1%
140,000 AP NMT Acquisition BV Dollar Term B (Second Lien) 11.808 2022 8 13 140,000 139,650
250,840 Equinox Holdings Inc. Incremental Term B-1 (First
Lien) # 0.000-5.499 2024 3 8 247,691 249,272
239,203 Fitness International LLC Term B 5.749 2025 4 18 238,093 237,409
300,023 UFC Holdings LLC First Lien Term 5.750 2023 8 18 299,089 298,397
220,000 UFC Holdings LLC Second Lien Term 9.999 2024 8 18 220,156 221,760
1,145,029 1,146,488
— 0.5%
286,375 Core & Main LP Initial Term 5.626 2024 8 1 285,832 284,579
- 1.6%
347,375 Blackhawk Network Holdings, Inc. First Lien
Term 5.499 2025 6 15 346,609 341,817
156,190 Finco I LLC 2018 Term B 4.499 2022 12 27 156,010 155,156
368,374 Verscend Holding Corp. Term B # 0.000-6.999 2025 8 27 366,693 365,836
869,312 862,809
- 3.3%
69,825 8th Avenue Food & Provisions Inc. First Lien
Term # 0.000-6.240 2025 10 1 69,825 70,043
110,000 8th Avenue Food & Provisions Inc. Second Lien
Term # 0.000-10.240 2026 10 1 111,099 110,138
219,450 8th Avenue Food & Provisions Post Holings Inc.
First Lien 6.240 2025 10 1 219,980 220,135
80,000 8th Avenue Food & Provisions Post Holings Inc.
Second Lien 10.240 2026 10 1 80,233 80,099
191,009 Albertson®s LLC 2018 Term B-7 5.499 2025 11 17 190,694 188,919
319,337 Albertson®s LLC Replacement 2017-1 Term B-6 5.479 2023 6 22 315,728 317,009
223,488 Aramark Services Inc. US Term B-3 4.249 2025 3 11 223,488 222,089
79,400 CHG PPC Parent LLC First Lien Initial Term 5.249 2025 3 31 79,230 78,209
54,115 Dole Food Co. Inc. Tranche B # 0.000-7.250 2024 4 6 57,414 52,154
288,824 HLF Financing SaRL LLC Term B # 0.000-5.749 2025 8 18 289,551 289,003
159,580 Shearer®s Foods LLC First Lien Term 6.749 2021 6 30 158,029 157,518
1,795,271 1,785,316
- 4.5%
444,524 Alterra Mountain Co. Initial Term 5.499 2024 7 31 443,233 442,950
233,205 Boyd Gaming Corp. Refinancing Term B 4.658 2023 9 15 232,226 230,990
540,167 Caesars Resort Collection LLC Term B # 0.000-5.249 2024 12 23 540,148 534,862
110,470 Golden Nugget Inc. Term B 5.234-5.249 2023 10 4 109,954 109,503
300,000 Greektown Holdings LLC Initial Term 5.249 2024 4 25 299,464 300,000
87,149 Mohegan Tribal Gaming Authority Term B 6.499 2023 10 13 86,551 82,192
204,488 Penn National Gaming Inc. First Lien Term B 4.749 2025 8 15 204,021 202,422
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401,624 Scientific Games International, Inc. Initial Term

B-5 # 0.000-5.329% 2024 8 14 402,640 391,226
93,247 Station Casinos LLC Term B Facility 5.000 2023 6 8 93,165 92,446
2,411,402 2,386,591
- 1.0%
552,472 MPH Acquisition Holdings LLC Initial Term # 0.000-5.351 2023 6 7 546,555 535,412
- 8.0%
240,000 Agiliti Health Inc. Term 5.500 2026 1 4 240,313 239,695
306,125 Air Medical Group Holdings Inc. 2017-2 New
Term 6.736 2025 3 14 304,318 288,811
428,992 Air Medical Group Holdings Inc. 2018 Term 5.739 2022 4 28 426,016 404,218
89,074 Air Methods Corp. Initial Term # 0.000-6.101 2024 4 21 108,779 67,296
370,000 AthenaHealth Inc. Term B (First Lien) # 0.000-7.197 2026 2 11 365,252 365,068
341,835 Change Healthcare Holdings LLC Closing Date
Term 5.249 2024 3 1 342,171 337,562
130,000 Envision Healthcare Corp. Initial Term # 0.000-6.249 2025 10 10 135,105 121,848
58,500 Exactech Inc. Closing Date Term 6.243 2025 2 14 58,255 58,500
290,000 GoodRX Inc. First Lien Initial Term 5.489 2025 10 10 289,323 287,280
59,400 HCA Inc. Tranche B10 4.499 2025 3 13 59,400 59,400
618,450 LifePoint Health Inc. First Lien Term B 6.982 2025 11 16 614,955 613,428
271,789 Phoenix Guarantor Inc. First Lien Initial Term 6.982 2026 3 5 267,773 268,166
274,726 Radnet Management, Inc. First Lien Term B-1 6.529 2023 6 30 275,387 275,413
193,450 Surgery Center Holdings Inc. First Lien Initial
Term # 0.000-5.750 2024 9 2 195,617 190,488
139,502 Vizient Inc. Term B-4 5.249 2023 2 13 136,940 139,023
375,250 Wink Holdco Inc. First Lien Initial Term 5.499 2024 12 1 374,485 363,760
197,000 WP CityMD Bidco LLC Refinancing Term 6.101 2024 6 7 197,996 191,090
4,392,085 4,271,046
-2.2%
560,000 Citadel Securities LP 5.999 2026 2 27 557,232 560,700
199,500 Financial & Risk U.S. Holdings, Inc. First Lien
Term B 6.249 2025 10 1 199,038 193,868
119,401 Financial & Risk US Holdings Inc. Initial Dollar
Term # 0.000 2025 10 1 115,520 116,030
309,225 First Eagle Holdings Inc. Initial Term 5.351 2024 12 2 307,777 308,452
1,179,567 1,179,050
- 0.7%
398,625 Brookfield Property Reit Inc. Initial Term B # 0.000-5.000 2025 8 27 401,012 385,003
- 0.8%
180,000 Penn Virginia Holding Corp. Advance Second Lien 9.500 2022 9 29 183,194 177,300
240,625 Permian Production Partners LLC Initial Advances 8.490 2024 5 20 236,354 234,609
419,548 411,909
- 1.7%
443,396 Allflex Holdings 111, Inc. Second Lien Initial
Term 9.486 2021 7 19 441,844 443,950
221,080 Laureate Education Inc. Series 2024 Term 5.999 2024 4 26 219,480 221,425
250,000 Mirion Technologies Inc. Initial Dollar Term 6.595 2026 3 6 248,762 250,833
910,086 916,208
- 3.2%
426,671 Asurion LLC New B-7 Term # 0.000-5.499 2024 11 3 430,105 424,470

138/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

« D
460,000 Asurion LLC Second Lien Replacement B-2
Term # 0.000-8.999% 2025 8 4 460,265 463,699
529,300 Hyperion Refinance Sarl Initial Dollar Term # 0.000-6.000 2024 12 20 525,715 527,812
279,300 Sedgwick Claims Management Services Inc. 5.749 2025 12 31 279,157 274,018
1,695,242 1,689,999
- 0.2%
90,000 Hornblower SUB LLC First Lien Term # 0.000 2025 4 27 89,550 89,860
- 2.4%
218,350 Lions Gate Capital Holdings LLC Term B 4.749 2025 3 24 218,350 216,348
245,568 Meredith Corp. Tranche B-1 Term 5.249 2025 1 31 245,250 245,261
239,434 Radio One Inc. Initial Term 6.500 2023 4 18 237,826 230,156
290,000 Tribune Media Co. First Lien Term 5.499 2024 1 27 291,669 290,180
317,777 Univision Communications Inc. 2017 Replacement
Term 5.249 2024 3 15 315,869 300,185
1,308,964 1,282,130
- 0.8%
431,879 Ancestry.com Operations Inc. Term B 5.750 2023 10 19 430,971 429,720
- 0.6%
177,800 BCP Renaissance Parent LLC Initial Term 6.244 2024 10 31 177,102 177,404
128,826 Traverse Midstream Partners LLC Advance 6.500 2024 9 27 128,386 128,946
305,488 306,350
- 0.5%
265,000 Clipper Acquisitions Corp. Term B-1 4.232 2024 12 27 260,231 261,687
- 2.9%
254,631 Printpack Holdings Inc. New Term 5.500 2023 7 26 253,057 248,266
365,253 Reynolds Group Holdings Inc. Incremental U.S.
Term 5.249 2023 2 6 366,822 361,436
180,000 Reynolds Group Holdings Inc. Incremental US
Term 5.249 2023 2 6 179,556 178,119
365,375 Ring Container Technologies LLC First Lien
Initial Term 5.249 2024 10 31 365,267 359,134
420,000 Tank Holding Corp. First Lien Term B # 0.000 2026 3 26 419,475 421,260
1,584,177 1,568,215
— 0.2%
79,600 Frontdoor Inc. Initial Term 5.000 2025 8 16 79,418 79,401
— 4.9%
395,000 Albany Molecular Research Inc. First Lien Initial
Term 5.743 2024 8 30 397,863 388,747
297,815 Bausch Health Companies Inc. Initial Term 5.481 2025 6 2 300,652 296,007
242,101 Catalent Pharma Solutions Inc. Dollar Term 4.749 2024 5 20 241,630 241,387
138,686 Endo International PLC First Lien Term B # 0.000 2024 4 27 139,948 136,648
289,518 Endo Luxembourg Finance Co. I Sarl Initial Term # 0.000-6.750 2024 4 29 286,003 285,265
493,235 Immucor Inc. Term B-3 7.601 2021 6 15 476,330 492,929
193,231 Jaguar Holding Co. Il 2018 Term 4.999 2022 8 18 193,774 191,462
548,800 Lantheus Medical Imaging Inc. New Term B 2017 6.249 2022 6 30 548,196 550,172
46,007 RPI Finance Trust Initial Term B-6 4.499 2023 3 27 45,931 45,781
2,630,327 2,628,398
- 0.3%
149,250 NMI Holdings Inc. Initial Term 7.246 2023 5 23 148,629 149,810
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- 0.6%
338,300 Istar Financial Inc. New Term B 5.233-5.237% 2023 6 28 337,943 335,763
- 0.4%
231,756 CEC Entertainment Inc. First Lien Term B 5.749 2021 2 15 227,888 224,804
- 4.7%
155,785 Academy LTD.Initial Term # 0.000-6.490 2022 7 1 160,654 112,651
564,519 ASHCO LLC Initial Term 7.499 2024 9 25 561,241 553,223
248,190 BJ"s Wholesale Club Inc. 2018 Other Term 5.499 2024 2 5 243,051 247,902
449,392 CWGS Group LLC 5.240-5.249 2023 11 8 448,365 403,891
170,000 EG America LLC Additional Facility 6.601 2025 2 7 166,690 166,316
410,804 Leslie"s Poolmart Inc. Tranche B-2 Term 6.079 2023 8 16 411,572 397,967
192,631 Michaels Stores Inc. 2018 New Replacement Term
B 4.991-4.999 2023 1 30 192,775 188,897
299,501 PetSmart Inc. Tranche B-2 # 0.000-5.490 2022 3 11 267,189 269,365
183,111 Spencer Gifts LLC Term B-1 8.750 2021 7 16 180,232 181,279
2,631,769 2,521,491
- 0.9%
460,000 Project Alpha International First Lien Term B # 0.000 2024 4 26 455,400 455,400
- 12.2%
418,472 Access CIG LLC First Lien Term B 6.243 2025 2 27 417,013 415,333
394,603 Ascend Learning LLC Initial Term 5.499 2024 7 12 394,567 387,697
120,000 BHN Merger SUB Inc. Second Lien Term # 0.000 2026 6 15 119,400 119,400
360,000 Carbonite Inc. First Lien Term B # 0.000 2026 3 26 359,025 357,862
210,000 Commscope Inc. First Lien Term B-2 # 0.000 2026 2 7 207,900 210,000
370,000 Datto Inc. First Lien Term USD # 0.000 2026 3 29 368,600 370,925
548,151 DigiCert Holdings Inc. First Lien Term # 0.000-10.499 2024 10 31 546,501 540,159
140,000 DigiCert Holdings Inc. Second Lien Term 10.499 2024 10 31 139,305 138,163
608,430 Finastra USA, Inc. First Lien Dollar Term # 6.101 2024 6 13 606,209 587,470
236,408 Global Tel Link Corp. First Lien Term 6.749 2025 11 29 234,837 235,521
324,833 Hyland Software Inc. 2018 Refinancing Term 5.999 2024 7 1 326,324 324,885
72,782 MA Financeco LLC Tranche B-3 Term 4.999 2024 6 21 72,667 70,841
80,000 McAfee, LLC Second Lien Initial 10.999 2025 9 29 81,383 80,900
427,470 McAfee, LLC Term B 6.249 2024 9 30 428,860 426,880
197,660 Microchip Technology Incorporated Initial Term 4.500 2025 5 29 197,660 195,652
491,518 Seattle Escrow Borrower LLC Initial Term 4.999 2024 6 21 490,732 478,409
314,213 Severin Acquisition LLC First Lien Term 5.980 2025 8 1 314,771 306,948
244,736 Sophia LP Term B 5.851 2022 9 30 244,852 243,282
238,700 Sound Inpatient Physicians Inc. First Lien
Initial # 0.000-5.249 2026 6 26 238,424 235,716
319,200 VeriFone Systems Inc. First Lien Initial Term 6.683 2025 8 20 318,208 314,651
236,256 Web.com Group, Inc. First Lien Term 6.243 2025 10 10 236,800 233,352
264,938 Zotec Partners LLC 7.490 2024 2 14 262,779 266,925
6,606,817 6,540,971
- 0.5%
270,000 Global Tel Link Corp. First Line Term USD # 0.000-6.749 2026 11 29 265,450 264,768
- 0.1%
90,305 Commercial Barge Line Co. Initial Term 11.249 2020 11 12 88,565 63,778
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- 1.3%
$ 300,940 CenturyLink Inc. Initial Term B 5.249% 2025 1 31 299,693 294,921
375,000 Level 3 Financing Inc. Tranche B 2024 Term # 0.000-4.736 2024 2 22 373,224 371,250
672,917 666,171
49,064,077 48,059,320
52,657,052 51,611,412
- 1.3%
- 1.3%
- 0.1%
40,381 EveryWare Global, Inc. * 411,514 75,714
- 0.7%
16,184 Panda Temple Power LLC * 268,315 347,956
- 0.5%
16,779 Montage Resources Corp. * 565,620 252,359
- 0.0%
1,155 Paragon Offshore Finance Co. Class A * 1,444 866
578 Paragon Offshore Finance Co. Class B * 11,560 20,736
13,004 21,602
1,258,453 697,631
1,258,453 697,631
- 99.0% M 52,917,098
- 1.0% 543,895
- 100.0% 53,460,993
144A 1933 144A
PIK
REIT
- 2019 31
# 2019 31
!
*
5 Yr U.S. Treasury Note Futures @) usb (231,656) 2019 6 28 (2,479)
10 Yr U.S. Treasury Note Futures 12) USb (1,490,625) 2019 6 19 (25,240)
(27,719)
usb
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assels and Liabilities

March 31, 2019

Assels

Investments in 4,718,992 units of Master Fund, at value £53,460,993

Unrealized gain on forward foreign currency contracts 100,653

Receivable for units subscribed 34,427
Total assets 53,596,113

Linbilities

Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency coniracts 383,359

Redemptions payable 247,901

Accrued distributor fess 110,283

Accrued expenses 138,113
Total lishilities 879,696
Met assets attributable to redeemable unitholders 852,716,417

ALUD Class

§6,050,278/1,129 946 units b 5.354

BRL Class

£3,655,686/824,892 units 5 4,432

JPY Class

$13,384,590/195,154 units § 68585

1JSD Class

529,625 862/3,607,875 units £ 8.211

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
2
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2019

Net investment income allocated from Master Fand

Interest 5 3,590,663
Expenses {910,528)
Met investment income allocated from Master Fund 3,080,135
Expenses
Distributor fees 546,886
Custody 78,510
Professional 27,725
Other 67,232
Total expenses T21,753
Met investment income 2,358,382

Met realized and snrealized gain (loss) on imvestments allocated from Master Fund,
foreign currency translation/ftransactions, and derivative contracts

Met realized gain (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund (1,269,134)
Foreign currency transactions B380
Forward foreign currency contracts (2,275,549}
Met realized (loss) (3,536,303)
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund (793,218)
Foreign currency translation 0
Forward foreign currency contracts {42,004)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss) {835,152)
Met realized and unrealized gain (Joss) on investments allocated from Master Fund,
foreign currency translation/transactions, and derivative contracts (4,371 .455)
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations S2.013,07TH)

The accompanying notes are an intégral part of these financial statements.
3
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2019

From operations

Met investment income § 2358382

Met realized (loss) (3.536,303)

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) {835,152)
Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations {2,013,073)

From distributions to nnitholders

ALUD Class {451,788)

BRL Class {602,209)

TPY Class (702,558)

USD Class (1,777.875)
Total distributions (3.574,430)

From participant transactions

Met (decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (MNote 6) {25,528 ,840)
Met {decrease) in net assets (31,116,343}

Net assets

Beginning of year 83,832,760

End of year £ 52,716 417

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4

144/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2019

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund (the “Fund") was formed on February 8, 2013 as
a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds ("Trust™), a unit trust established by a trust deed under
the Trusts Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Mutual Funds Law (2013
revigion) of the Cayman [slands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit trust, which allows it o
create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and labilities of each sub-trust. As of
March 31,2019, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset Management
Company Limited (“*WAMCL”) is the Trust’s Manager. Western Asset Management Company,
LLC ("WAM™), formerly kmown as Western Asset Management Company, Western Asset Management
Company Pre, Lid. (“Western Asset Singapore™), Western Asset Management Company Lid. (“Westem
Agset Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos ¢ Valores Mobilifirios
Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil™), and Western Asset Management Company Pty. Lid. (*Western
Asset Melbourne™) are the sub-investment managers to the Fund (collectively the “Trvestment Manager™).
BMY Mellon Fund Management {Cayrman ) Limited iz administrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank
of Mew York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is
the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)
is registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Ltd.
{Japan)is A gent Company. Mitsubishi UFJ] Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Ltd. (Japan) and SMBC
Mikko Securities Inc. are distributors to the Fund.

The Fund invests substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Master
Fund (the “Master Fund™). The Master Fund is organized as a separate sub-trust of the Trust and isa
separate investment company with investment objectives that are consistent with those of the Fund.
The Fund intends to achieve its investment objective by investing in the Master Fund, which, in tum,
makes investments on behalf of the Fund. Therefore, the Fund's interest in the securities and other
investments owned by the Master Fund is indirect. In such an arrangement, the Fund is referred to as
a “Feeder Fund”,

The imrestment objective of the Master Fund is to provide long-term total retumn through a diversified
portfolio congisting substantially of bank loan instruments, designed to control and restrict overall
portfalio risk. The Master Fund shall imvest approximately @026 of its net assets in fixed income securities,
including bank loans and inflation linked securities, that are rated Bal or BB+ or lower by a nationally
recognized rating agency such as Moody’ s Investors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, or
Fitch, Inc, or that are of comparable quality as determined by the Investment Manager or WAMCL.,

The accounting policies of the Master Fund, such as the valuation of the Master Fund's investments,
will directly affect the value of the Fund's interest in the Master Fund, and thus the net assets of the
Fund. The financial statements and accompanying footnotes of the Master Fund are attached and should
be read in conjunction with the Fund's financial statements. The percentage of the Master Fund owned
by the Fund at March 31, 2019 was 100%6.

With regard to an imvestment by the Fund in its corresponding Master Fund, the determination of the
net asset value of the Master Fund and redemption of interests in the Master Fund may be subject to
suspengions, if among other reasons, it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to
fairly determing the value of the Master Fund's net assets. In the event of such a suspension by the
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

1. Organization and Investment Objective (Continned)

Master Fund, the Investment Manager will suspend calculations of the net agset value of the Fund
that imvests in such Master Fund, as well as suspend issuances and redemptions of units of the Fund,
ingluding redemption grders that were placed prior to such suspension, but which hawve not been settled.
There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2019.

At March 31, 2019, the Fund had two unaffiliated unitholders who individually held more than 10%%

of the Fund's units outstanding, The percentage of aggregate ownership was 100%. The Fund may
be materially impacted by the actions of one or more of these unitholders.

r 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“US.
GAAP™), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial Services - Investment
Companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with ULS. GAAP, requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and lighilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of increases and
decreases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Imvestment Transactions, Investment Income and Expenses

Investments made into the Master Fund and redemptions from the Master Fund are recorded on trade
date.

The Fund's net investment income or loss consists of the Fund’s pro rata share of the net imvestment
income or loss of the Master Fund, less the Fund *s feeder specific actual and accrued expenses determined
in accordance with LS. GAAR

Functional and Presentation Currency

[tems included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valuations
of the units are effected and denominated in the ULS, Dollar (“LJSD™).

Income Tazes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gaims or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Income Taxes (Continned)

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaged in rade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “effectively connected™ with a US.
trade or business carried on by the Fund. Effectively connected income is subjectto ULS. federal income
tax at the praduated rates applicable to U.S. domestic corporations. Certain categories of income that
are not “effectively connected” but are derived from ULS. sources, including dividends and interest
income, are subject to a US, tax of thirty percent. However, under the portfolio interest exemption,
the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended March 31, 2019,
interest earned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund is subject to the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is maore likely
than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 2019, there are no unceriain tax positions
that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy 15 to recognize
interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense,

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class™ and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers an Australian Dollar (“AUTD") Class, Brazilian Real BRL") Class, Japanese Yen (“JPY™)
Class, and United States Dollar (“USD™) Class (each Class, except the USD Class, is a “Hedged
Class™). The Fund seeks to hedge the USD currency exposure through the use of forward contracts of
the BRI Class to the BRL, the AU Class to the AUD and the JFY Clags to the JPY, The denomination
currency for units of the BRI Class and USD Class are USD, AUD for the AUD Class, and JPY for the
TPY Class {each a “Denomination Currency™) in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation of units
are ¢ffected and n which units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class 15 determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant Dealing
Day. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open for business
in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange, London
Stock Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange are open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund
units are made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value, A sales charge of up to 3.5% of
the net asset value may be charged, and retained, by the Distributor. The sales charge is charged outside
the Fund by the Distributor,

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund’ s units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period when it is not
reasonably practicable for the Investrment Manager to fairly determing the value of the Fund's net
assets. There were no such occurrénces during the year ended March 31, 2019,

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized paing and logses are allocated on a daily basis to each
Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply adjustments
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Allgcation of Income, Expenses, Gaing, and Losses (Continned)

to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevant Class of units
any applicable gaing, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with respect to such Classes (e.g.,
all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JP'Y Class of units are borne by the JPY
Class of units), All Classes ofunits will bear ratably any gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non-LIS0D denominated investments to the functional currency.

Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as labilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice becomes
fixed This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of 2
fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. Ag a result, redemptions paid after
the end of the six month period, but based upon six month period end net asset values, are reflected
as redemptions payable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2019, Redemption
notices received for which the USD and unit amounts are not fixed remain in capital until the net asset
value used to determine the redemption and unit amounts are determined.

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains and/or capital are declared
by the Fund by the fifteenth (15*) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Imvestment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units, Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

3 Valuation

The Fund's investment in the Master Fund is valued at the net asset value per share on the valuation
date as determined by the Master Fund. The Fund receives a daily allocation of the Master Fund's
income, expenses, and net realized and unrealized gains and losses in proportion to its investment in
the Master Fund.

Owver-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, options
contracts, swaptions contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset prices,
indiges, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts are normal by
valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending on the product
and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be estimated by a
pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing models. The pricing
models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates,
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

3 Valuation (Continued)

The various inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund’s assets and liabilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

@ Level | - quoted prices in active markets for identical investments

® Level 2 other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.)

® Level 3 - significantunobservahle inputs, including the Investment Manager's own assumptions
in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value techniques include (i)
the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment and the application of
various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default
rate asgumptions, and (ii) the solicitation of valuations from third parties (typically,
broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
nmhpmnmdahummeﬂnmnfpﬂgmmtaﬂdmagﬁmmcfmw
including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and default rate assumptions.

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securities.

The following is & summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and liabilities carried at fair value:

Assets
t 8 nt
Quoted  Ofscrvable  Unapscrvable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Description {Lovel 1) {Lewel 2) {Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts & — § 100,603 S — § 100,693
Liabilities
Other
Significant Significant
Quoted Observahic Unobservable
Prices Inputs Taputs
Description (Lavel 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts 8 ] 333& s 5 383,359

4, Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract o hedge against foreign currency exchange
rate risk on its non-USD denominated securities and units or to facilitate setlement of a foreign currency
denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract is an agreement between two
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

4, Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (Continned)
parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price with delivery and settlement at a future date. The contract
is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealized gain or
logs. When a forward forgign currency contract is closed, through either delivery of the currencies or
offset by entering into another forwand foreign currency contract, the Fund recognizes a realized gain
or loss equal to the difference between the value of the conftract at the time it was opened and the value
of the contract at the Gme it is closed.

Forward foreign currency contracts imvolve elements of market risk in excess ofthe amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Rigks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meet the terms of
their contracts. The following table presents the open forward foreign currency contracts as of March

31,2019:
CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE UNREALIFED
SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERFARTY TO DELTVER FOR GATN (LDSS)
Agril 22019 Morgan Stasley & Co, AlID BSR 7 UsSD  £085241 ] 0
Intermptional pilc
April-f2-2019 Citibani, M.A, BEL 12,951 489 UsD 3482 20,313
April2-2019 Cisbank, M.A. HAL (REpri g USD 3,484,068 (4,839
April{2-2019 Cold Sachy I 1 HRL 2,139,833 U5 S52AE0 LI04
Aprilf2:2019 Coldman Sachs International RRL 2,139,833 s 343,140 (T0)
Mmp03-2010 Cold Sachs Inter 1 BRL 198600 usD 50,000 {931}
April-2-2019 Cioldman Sachs Tnter I Y 1491561505 UsD 13525310 49477
] B9, 139
CONTRACTS N EXCHANGE UNREALIZED
SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY _TORECEIVE =~ _FOR = GAIN(LOSS)
April2-2019 HEBC Hanke ple ALD 1,376,350 UsD 7457 § (3,106)
April2-2019 Morgan Stsley & Co, AL TEHETT USD 5184629 (FLO1E)
Iniermaticnal ple
April-3-2019 Morgan Stasley & Co. AL 8533827 UsD 6088310 (22,718)
Intereational ple
April2-2019 Citibank, MLA. HRL 15,264 633 UsSD 35820 (139,767
Aprhg2-2019 Cinibank, MA. HREL 13,264,633 USD 3,404,068 4373
My 03- 2018 Citibank, MLA. HRL 12,338,689 UsD  318%168 (17527
April-02-2018 Creddengn Sacha [nternational HRL 2,139,833 L] Ereli (22211)
April2-2019 Choldran Sachs Tnternational HRL L1833 LEL ] 3,13 T
My 3-2019 Croldorgn Sachy Interngtiongl BELL 1441523 UsD ITLTLR (2,042
Apdl-02-2019 Coldnan Sachs [nternational Y 1,099,053 4 Ush 9980000 (S0,647)
April-26-2019 Choldmgn Sacha Tmicrnasonal Y 1,491,561 505 USD» 13550460 (42.962)
April2-2019 RS AG ;Y 39307 563 USD 3562086 (18.525)
(N
Total Met Unreslived (Lom) om Feeward Foreigs Currency Contracts § (202, T04)
Currency Legend

ALITY - Aggtralian Digllar
HEL - Frurilipn Resl
TFY - Inpanese Yen
U500 - LIS. Dollar

10
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

5. Charges and Fees
Investment Manager Fee
Imvestment Manager's fee is charged to the Master Fund for the services provided to the Master Fund
and Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of §7,500, which is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears,

Administrator Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of $10,000 and an additional 510,000 annually for each
additional Class in excess of the first three Classes.

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of
average daily net assets of the Fund.

Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.05%
of average daily net assets of the Fund.

6. Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund’s unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2019:
Year Ended March 31, 2019

ALD BRI I
Caita Amosnt Daita Amomat Dl Amonat
Unity inmed 1LETE § 16376 Tl 3 152,639 5 I
Units repurchased (130,195) m@lﬂ_l} ﬂ!‘!‘.-;ﬁ} (591 BET) 2590 m:
et (decroase) (1273198 (T27,225) (55385) % (239,238) 44083)5 (3145658
usn Tetnl
Caita Amosnt Dnita Ammat
Unity insaed I ¥ 79,158 Ll 5
Unis epchased EAD)_QLoGws__ einen. psdisem)

N1 (decrease) @) GLAIGTE) _ (RTT66T4)5 _(35,528,40)
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

7.  Financial Highlights

Sclected Per Unit Data Year Ended March 31, 2019
ALY BRI JPY TSI

Met asset value, beginning of year § 6216 § 576 S 7659 5§ BS548
Met investment income'? 0.187 0.166 2,458 0262
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) {0.650) {0.800) (7.224) {0.268)
Total income (loss) from investment

operations {0.453) {0.634) (4.766) 0.023
Distributions to unitholders {0.409) {0.680) {3.243) {0360)
Met asset value, end of year § 5354 § 4432 S5 68585 S B211
Total return %E (7.29) {11.03) {6.22) 0.27
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Expenses % 2.40 240 2.40 238
Met investment income % 344 343 344 3.46

) Mgt imvestment income per wnit has been caloulaied based upon average units outstanding for the year.

2 Total return calculation is based on the value of a single unit of partici pation outstanding throwughout the year. Tt represents
the percentage change in the net asset value per unit between the beginning and end of the year, excluding distributions
to unitholders.

The above ratios are calculated for the participating units as & whole. An individual unithalder's total

return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.

The above ratio and per unit data includes the Fund's pro rata allocations of income, expenses, and
realized and unrealized gain or loss from the Master Fund.

8. Derivative Instruments
The Fund may transact in a variety of derfvative instruments including forwards for trading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk, The fair value of these
derivative instruments is included as a separate ling item within the Statement of A ssets and Liabilities
by contract type.
The following tables provide information about the fair values and the location of derivatives not accounted
for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March
31, 2019 and are grouped by denivative type:
Derivatives™
Fore
E:uhu'?m
Forward Forgign Currency Contracts £ 100,693

12
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

8. Derivative Instruments {Continned)
Liahility .
Foreign
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 383,359

) Porward forsign currency contracts are shown as scparate ling itema on the Statement of Asscts and Linhilitics.

The following tables provide information about the effect of dertvatives within the Fund’s Statement
of Operations for the vear ended March 31, 2019. The first table provides additional detail about the
amounis and sources of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the vear. The second table provides
additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the Fund's derivatives
during the vear. The realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are presented as separate
line items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of Realized

(1oss) gn

Recognized

Foreign
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts b3 (2,275,54%)

Change in Unrealized
(Loss)
on Derivatives
Recognized
Forcign
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Confracts 5 {42,004)

13
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

8. Derivative Instruments {Continned)
During the year ended March 31, 201 9, the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was as follows:

Mo
e
_ Values
Forward Currency Contracts to Delivert” § (26,195512)
Forward Currency Contracts to Receive™ 52,286432

) This amount, converted to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representative average payable
walue at scithement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund.

@ Thisamount, converted to presentational curmency where spplicatie, corresponds to the representative average reocivable
walue at settlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund,

9. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty’s credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterpartics may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by the
value of any collateral received. The Fund's exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gaing inherent in such trangactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes counterparty credit risk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, executing master netting arrangements, and
managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty credit
risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriately reflect
the credit quality of the counterparty. Thess adjustments are also recorded on the market quotes recetved
from counterpartics or other market participants since these quotes may not fully reflect the credit
rigk of the counterparties to the dervative instruments,

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset derivative assets and labilities that are subject
to netting arrangements within the Staterent of Assets and Liabilities. Information is presented below
for all derfvative assets and Kabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master Netting A greement

(“MNA”).
Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2019
Amounts Presented in the
Statement of Assets and Linbilitics
Asscls Liahilities
Foreard Foreign Currency Contracts 5 100693 5 B3 399

Total derivative asvets and liabilities in the Statement of Asscts & Lighilities
subject to a MNA 5 100693 5 363,399
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

9, Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continned)
Derivative Assets and Collaternl Received
Gross
Amounts of
Asscts
Preseoted in
the Statcment

of Assets and Financtal Cash Recelved
Lighilitics Instrument 25 Collateral Net Amount™

Citibank, N.A® 5 24,688 § (24,688) § — 3 2
Guldman Sachs International™ FL,766 {52, 765) — —
Morgan & Cao,

Innumwﬁ 23739 (23,235)

Total 5 100693 § (100,693) § — ==

3} Mgt amount represents the net amount receivable from the counterparty in the event of defmlt,
& Ower the Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amonnts of
Linbilities
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liahilitics Instrument as Collateral  Net Amount™
Cinfhank, N_A™ 5 162533 § (24688) 3§ — 5 137,845
Gobdman Sacks Intcrnational™ 119,499 {52,765) — 6,733
HSBC Bark pl¢™ 9,106 — — 9,106
Morgan Stanley & Co.
International plc™! 73,736 (23,239) - 50497
URS AG™ 18,525 — — 18,525
Total 5 193390 § (100.693) § — 5 242 706

{2y Mot amount represents the net amoont payable doe to the counterparty in the event of defiul.
& Ower the Counter.

10 Fund Investment Risks
Hedging Transactions Risk
Hedging strategies in general are usually intended o limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected to limit or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities

associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of units, such amount ofithe liabilities
that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund.

15
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2013

10.  Fund Investment Risks (Continuned)
Derivgtive In Rish
The Fund may invest in various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs that are different
from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs presented by investing directly in securities
and other more traditional investments. Following are additional rigk factors concerning the use of
derivatives:

® Manapement Risk: Derivative products are specialized instruments that require investment techniques
and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds, The successful uss of
derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not onhy of the underlyving
instrument but also of the derivative itself. In particular, the use and complexity of derivatives
require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the ransactions entered into, and the
ghility to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Fund's portfolio.

® Counterparty Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fund to the rigk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settiement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially during unusually adverse market conditions. If the counterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractual rights.
Counterparty risk iz more pronounced if a counterparty's obligations exceed the amount of collateral
held by the Fund (if any), the Fund iz unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon default by
the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from the
marked-to-market value of the instrument.

® Documentation Risk: Many derivative instruments have documentation sk, Because the contract
for each over-the-counter dervative transaction is individually negotiated with a specific counterparty,
there exists the risk that the parties may interpret contractual terms differently. If that occurs,
the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund to enforce its contractual
rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the counterparty. The Fund,
therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtamn payments the Investment Manager
believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments may be delayed or
made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation,

Riskz Associated with Tmvestment in the Master Fund

The Fund, through its investrmentin the Master Fund, is exposed to various types of risks, As the Fund's
assets ans imvested in the Master Fund, they are primarily exposed to the risks faced by the Master
Fund. A summary of risks is discussed in the Master Fund's financial statements, which are attached
and should be read in conjunction with the Fund’s financial statements,

11. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Fund that
havenot yet oocurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss in connection

16
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2019

11.  Contingencies and Commitments (Continned)
with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no assurance that
material Habilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund.

12 Subsequent Events

Asof May 29,2019, the date the financial staternents were available to be issued, no subsequent events
or wansactions had occurred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented.
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2018 31

2018 31
7,554,733 84,426,013 9,172,042
404,372 43,931
84,830,385 9,215,973
645,074 70,081
93,787 10,189
170,523 18,526
88,241 9,587
997,625 108,382
83,832,760 9,107,591
7,814,829 1,257,265 6.216 675
5,057,941 /880,280 5.746 624
18,324,978 /239,247 76.594 8,321
52,635,012 /6,157,749 8.548 929
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10,236
17,796

159/266

5,152,358 559,752
53,846 5,850
(1,136,663) (123,487)
4,069,541 442,115
824,724 89,598
27,489 2,986
40,533 4,404
85,158 9,252
977,904 106,239
3,001,637 335,875
(3,017,038) (327,771)
1,259,147 136,794
(1,590) (173)
(1,759,481) (191,150)
807,983 87,779
(520,707) (56,570)
493 54
287,769 31,263
(1,471,712) (159,887)

1,619,925

175,989
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2018 31

3,091,637 335,875
(1,759,481) (191,150)
287,769 31,263
1,619,925 175,989
(810,934) (88,100)
(698,167) (75,849)
(904,449) (98,259)
(2,704,433) (293,810)
(5,117,983) (556,018)
(31,956,882) (3,471,796)
(35,454, 940) (3,851,825)
119,287,700 12,959,416

83,832,760 9,107,591
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3.5
Tokyo Stock Exchange
2018 31

2018 31
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2018 4 3 Citibank.N.A. AUD 206,348 USD 160,000 1,720

2018 4 3 HSBC Bank plc AUD 2,487,454 USD 1,933,611 25,607
Morgan Stanley & Co.

2018 3 International plc AUD 8,344,734 USD 6,455,107 54,269
Morgan Stanley & Co.

2018 4 3 International plc AUD 206,348 USD 159,644 1,361

2018 4 3 UBS AG AUD 460,627 USD 355,585 2,261

2018 4 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 1,810,558 USD 548,704 4,075

2018 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 266,792 USD 80,000 (59)
Morgan Stanley & Co.

2018 4 3 International plc BRL 14,927,391 USD 4,522,767 32,500

2018 4 3 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,199,005,472 USD 11,420,318 144,053

2018 4 3 UBS AG JPY 42,569,000 USD 400,000 (348)

2018 4 3 UBS AG JPY 760,989,249 USD 7,249,036 92,174

2018 5 2 UBS AG JPY 3,297,212 USD 31,468 402

358,015
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2018 4 3 HSBC Bank plc AUD 2,487,454 USD 1,950,935 (42,931)

2018 5 3 HSBC Bank plc AUD 1,628,363 USD 1,259,982 (10,921)
Morgan Stanley & Co.

2018 3 International plc AUD 8,551,082 USD 6,702,599 (143,482)
Morgan Stanley & Co.
2018 5 3 International plc AUD 8,344,734 USD 6,455,999 (55,041)
2018 4 3 UBS AG AUD 460,626  USD 360,000 (6,675)
2018 5 3 UBS AG AUD 252,835 USD 195,612 (1,671)
2018 4 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 1,810,558 USD 556,483 (11,854)
2018 5 3 Goldman Sachs International BRL 1,810,558 USD 547,211 (3,901)
Morgan Stanley & Co.
2018 4 3 International plc BRL 14,927,391 USD 4,588,667 (98,400)
Morgan Stanley & Co.
2018 5 3 International plc BRL 14,927,391 USD 4,510,331 (30,937)
2018 4 3 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,199,005,472 USD 11,248,666 27,599
2018 5 2 Goldman Sachs International JPY 1,199,005,472 USD 11,442,617 (145,724)
2018 4 3 HSBC Bank plc JPY 760,989,249 USD 7,139,339 17,523
2018 4 3 UBS AG JPY 39,271,788 USD 368,510 828
2018 4 3 UBS AG JPY 3,297,212 USD 31,409 (399)
2018 5 2 UBS AG JPY 760,989,249 USD 7,262,685 (92,731)
(598,717)
(240,702)
AUD
BRL
JPY
usb
7,500
10,000
10,000
0.80
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0.05
2018 31
2018 31
39,469 249,888 38,397 232,448 11,604 884,618
(888,217) (5,715,817) (179,321) (1,088,186) (78,257) (5,842,768)
(848,748) (5,465,929) (140,924) (855,738) (66,653) (4,958,150)
563,405 4,929,620 652,875 6,296,574
(2,967,862) (25,606,685) (4,113,657) (38,253,456)
(2,404,457) (20,677,065) (3,460,782) (31,956,882)
2018 31
6.558 6.320 77.006 8.814
&} 0.193 0.183 2.255 0.259
(0.070) (0.037) 0.592 (0.165)
0.123 0.146 2.847 0.094
(0.465) (0.720) (3.259) (0.360)
6.216 5.746 76.594 8.548
@ 1.88 2.31 3.70 1.07
2.05 2.05 2.05 2.05
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

o
@
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2018 31
@
404,372
(€}
645,074
€))
2018 31
1,259,147
(520,707)
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2018 31
® (35,655, 169)
@ 73,387,393
@
@
2018 31

404,372 645,074

404,372 645,074
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Citibank, N.A.®

Goldman Sachs International®

HSBC Bank plc®

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc®
UBS AG

€))
@

Goldman Sachs International®

HSBC Bank plc®

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc®
UBS AG™®

@
@
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@

1,720 1,720
175,727 (161,538) 14,189

43,130 (43,130)

88,130 (88,130)

95,665 (95,665)

404,372 (388,463) 15,909
@
161,538 (161,538)

53,852 (43,130) 10,722
327,860 (88,130) 239,730
101,824 (95,665) 6,159
645,074 (388,463) 256,611
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assaets and Liabilities
March 31, 2018

Assels

Tewveatments in 7.554, 733 unsts of Master Fund, at value

Unrzalized gain on forward foreign currency contracis

Total asscts

Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts
Redemptions payable
Accrued distriutor fees
Accroed expenses
Total liabilitics
et assels atribntable 10 redeemable unitholders

ALD Class
57,814,829/1,257,265 units

BEL Class
£5,057,941/880,280 units

JPY Class
FI8.324 OTR230 247 urits

LSD Class
$52,635,012/6,157,74% unils

84,426,013
404,372

84,830,385

545,074
93,787
170,523
88,241

997,625
§83,832,760
Ep———

] 6,216
5 5.746

——r——ay

£ 76594

5 8.548

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2018

Nel investment income allocated from Master Fund
Interest (net of foreign lax withholdings 510,236)
Dividends (met of forgign tax withholdings $17,796)
Expenses

Met investment income alloceted from Master Fund

Expenses
Distributor fees
Professional
Custody
Other
Total expenses

Met imvestment income

$ 5,152,358
53,846
(1,136,663)

4,069,541

824,724
27,489
40,533
85,158

977,904

3.091,637

Net realized and unrealized gain (Joss) on investments allocated from Master Fund,
foreign currency translation/transactions, and derivative contracts

Met realized goin (loss)
Allocated from Master Fund
Forward foreign currency contracts
Foreign currency transactions
Met realized (loss)

Het change in unrealized gain (loss)

(3,017.038)
1,250,147

(11,5509
(1,759, 481)

Allpcated from Master Fund BOT 982
Forward foreign currency contracts (520,707
Foretgn currency translation 493
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 287,769
Met realized and wnrealized gaim (loss) on investmentz allecated from Master Fund,
foreign currency translation/transactions, and derivative contracts (1,471,712)
Wet increase in net assetz resulting from operations % 1,619,928

The accompanyung notes are an integral part of these Ninancial statements,
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund
{A Sub-~Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statemment of Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended March 31, 2018

From operations

Wet investment income § 3091637

Met realized (foss) {1,750,481)

Met change in unrealized gain (loss) 287,762
Net increase in net assets resulting from aperations 1619925

From distributions to unitholders

AL Class (810,934)

BEL Class {698,167)

JPY Class {904,449)

USD Class _ (2,704,433)
Total distributions (5,117,983}

From participant transactions

Net (decrease) in net assets resulting from participant transactions (Note 6 i31,956,852)
Met {decraase) in net assets (35,454,940)

Met assels

Beginning of year 119,287,700

End of year T B3,B32T60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements,
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2018

1. Organization and Investment Objective

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund (the “Fund™) was formed on Febroary 8, 2013 as
asub-trust of the Western Asszr Offshore Funds (“Trist™), a unit trust established by a trust deed under
the Truats Law (a5 amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Munsal Funds Law (2013
revizion) of the Cayman Islands, The Trust 15 strectured as an umbrella unit trust, which allows 1t o
create mulfiple sub-trosts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilities of each sub-trest. Az of March
31, ZO18, there were 10 sub <trusts of Western Asset Offsbore Funds, Western Asset Menzgement
Company Limited (*WAMCL") 15 the Trust's Manager, Western Asset Management Company
LLC [*“WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western Assel Management
Company Pte. Lid, {*Western Asset Singapore”), Western Asset Management Company Ltd, (“Western
Aszet Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos e Valores Mobihianios
Limitada {“Western Asset Brazl"), and Westerm Asset Mapagement Company Pry. Lid, (“Western
Asset Melfbourne™) are the sub-invesiment managers ta the Fund (collectively the “Investment Manager™).
BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited is administrator and trostee to the Fund, The Bank
of New York Mellon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bank of Mew York Mellon Corporation, is
the custodian and sub-admimstrator to the Fund, The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch)
is registrar and transfer agent to the Fund. Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co. Lid.
(Japan) is Agent Company. Mitsubishi UFI Morgan Stanley PH Sccurities Co. Lid. (Japan) and SMBC
Mikko Securities Inc, are distributors to the Fund.

The Fund invests substantially all of its assets in the Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Master
Fume {the “Master Fund™). The Master Fund is organized as a sepacate sub-trust of the Trust and is a
separale investment company with investment objectives that are consistent with those of the Fund.
The Fund interds to achieve its investment objective by investing in the Master Fund, which, in turn,
makes vestments on behalf of the Fund. Therefore, the Fund's interest in the securittes and other
investments owned by the Master Fund iz indirect. In such an arrangement, the Fand i referred to as
a “Feeder Fund™.

The ivestment objective of the Master Fund 15 to provides long-term 1otal return through a diversitied
portolio consisting substantially of bank loan instruments, designad to control and restrict overall
portfolio rigk. The Master Fund shall imest approximately 90% of its net assets in fived income securities,
incleding bank loans and inflation linked securities, that are rated Bal or BB+ or lower by a nationally
recognized rating agency such as Moody's Investors Service, Ine., Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services,
of Fitch, Inc, or that are of comparable quality as determined by the Investment Manager or WAMCL,

The aceouniing policics of the Master Fund, such as the valuaiion of the Master Fund's investments,
will directly affect the value of the Fund's interest in the Master Fund, and thus the net assets of the
Furd. The financial staterments and accompanying footnotes of the Master Fund are attached and should
be read in confumction with the Fund's financial statements, The percentage of the Master Fund ewned
by the Fund at March 31, 2008 was 100%.

With regard to an investment by the Furd in its corresponding Master Fund, the determination of the
el aszet value of the Master Fund and redemption of interests in the Master Fund may be subject to
sugpengions, if among other reasons, it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to
fairty determine the value of the Master Fund's net assets. Tn the evenl of such a suspension by the

176/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

{A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 21, 2018

1. Organization and Investment Objective (Confinued)

Master Fund, the Investment Manager will suspend calculations of the net asset value of the Fund
at invests in such Master Fund, as well as suspend purchases and redemptions of units of the Fund,
including redemption orders that were placed prior to such suspension, but which have not been setited.
There were no such occurrences during the vear ended March 31, 2008,

At March 31, 2018, the Fund had twe unaffiliated unitholders who indrvidually held more than 10%6
of the Fund’s units outstanding. The percentage of aggrepale ownership was 100%, The Fund may
be materially impacted by the actions of one or more of these unitholders.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (105,
GAAP™), the Fund wses the accrual basis of accounting, Accordingly, income and expenses are recorded
as earned and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 946, Finaneial Services - [nvestment
Companics.

Use of Extimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with 115, GAAP requires management fo make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repented amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosre of contingent
assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of increases and
decreases in nel axsels from operations during the reporting period. Acmal resultz conld differ from
those estimates.

Investment Transactions, lmestment Income and Expenses

[nvestments made into the Master Fund and redemptions from the Master Fund are reconded on trade
date.

The Fund's net investiment income or loss consists of the Fund's pro rata share of the net investment
income or loss of the Master Pund, less the Pund’s feeder specific actual and acerued expenses determined
in accordance with TLS. GAAPR

Functional and Presentation Carrency

Itemns ineluded in the Fund's financial statements are measured nsing the eurrency’ of the primary
economic environinent in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valuations
of the units are effected and denominated in the U5, Dallar (“USD™).

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a resull, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements,
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March 31, 2018

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continned)

The Fund intends 10 conduct its affairs so that it will nor be deemed to be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “cffectively connected” with a ULS.
mrade o business carried on by the Fund, Effectively connected income 12 sabject to U3, federal income
tax at the graduated rates applicable to ULS. domestic corporations, Certain categories of income that
are not “affzctively connected™ but are derived from LLS. sources, mcluding dividends and interest
mcome, are subject toa ULS, tax of thirty percent, However, under the portfolio inlerest exemption,
the thirty percent tax does not apply 1o portfolio interest earned. For the vear ended March 31, 2018,
interest carned by the Fund qualifies under the portfolio interest exemption,

The Fund is subject to the autheritative guidance with respect to sccounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requites the Fund o determine whether a tax position is more likely
than pol to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions for
all open tax years and has concluded that as of March 31, 201 8, there are no uncertain tax posilions
thiat would require linancial statement recognition or digclosurs, The Fund's policy is to recognize
interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income fax expense.
For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Fund did nod recognize any interest or penalties for uncertain
tax positions.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class™ and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers an Avstralian Dollar {(“AUD™) Class, Brazilian Real (“BRL") Class, Japanese Yen ("JPY™)
Class, and United States Dollar ("USD™) Class (each Class, except the USD Class, 15 a “IHedped
Class™ ), The Fund sceks (o hedge the USD corrency exposure throngh the use of foraard contractz of
the BRL Class to the BRL, the AUD Class to the AUD and the JPY Class to the JPY, The denomination
currency for units of the BRL Class and USD Class are TSIy, AUD for the AUD Class, and JPY for the
JPY Class {each a "Depomination Currency™) in which issnances, redemptions, and valuation of units
are affected and in wluch units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant Diealing
Dav, A Dealing Day 15 every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open for business
in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange, London
Stock Exchange and Tokyoe Stock Exchange are open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund
units are made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value. A sales charge of up to 3.5% of
the net assel value may be charged, and retained, by the Distributer. The sales charge is charged outside
the Fund by the Distributor.

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determimation
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may postpone
the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, dueing any period when it is not
reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the Fund’s net
asgets. There were no such occurrences during the vear ended March 31, 2018,
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March 31, 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Allscation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and nnrealized gaing and losses are allocated on a daily basis to cach
Class of units based upon the relative portion of netassets of each Class, The Fund will gpply adustments
to the valuation of ite Classes in order to specifically credit of charpe to the relevant Class of units
any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with respect tosuch Classes{e.g.,
all costs associared with hedging transactions relating to the JPY Class of units are borme by the JPY
Class of units}. All Classes of wnits will bear ratably any gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging
non=L1S0 denominated investments o the functional currency.

Redemptions Payahle

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice becomes
fixed. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice or on the last day of a
fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemplion request. As a result, redemptions paid after
the end of the year, but based upon vear end net asset values, are retlected as redemplions payable on
the Statement of Assers and Liabilities at March 31, 2018, Redemption notices recetved for which
the USD and unit amounts are not fixed remain in capitel until the pet asset vahie used to determine
the redemption and unit amounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains andior capital are declared
by the Fund by the fifteenth (15") day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or inkind, as
may be determined by the Imvestment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
anits, Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

3 Valuation

The Fund's investment in the Master Fund is valued at the net asset vahoe per share on the valuation
date as determined by the Master Fund. The Fund receives a daily allocation of the Master Fund's
income, expenses, and net realized and unrealized gains and losses in proportion (o its investment in
the Master Fund.

Over-the-counter Financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracls, options
confracts, swaptions contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlving asset prices,
indices, reference rates, and other mpuis or a combimation of these factors. These contracis are normally
vahued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending on the product
and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instrunents can be estimated by a
pricing service provider using a series of techniques, ineluding simulation pricing models. The pricing
models use mputs that are ohserved from actively quoted markets such az issuer details, indices, spreads,
interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.
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March 31, 2018

3. Valuation (Continued)

The various mputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund's assets and liabalibies are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

® Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical investments

# [Level 2 — other significant observahle mputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
imterest rates, prepayment speeds, credil risk, ete.)

# Level 3 - significant unobeervable inputs, including the Investment Manager's own assumptions
in determining the foir value of investments. Level 3 fair value techrigues include (1)
the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment and the application of
variows assmmplions including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and de fault
rate assumptions, and (i) the solicitation of vahations from third parties (ypically,
broker-dealers}. Thard-party valuation providers often utilize proprietary models that
are subjective and also require the e of judgment and the application of varions assumplions
including, but not limited to, prepayment assumptions and defeult rate assumptions,

The valuation levels are not necessanly an indication of the nisk er Bguidity associated with investing
in those securifies.

The following 13 a summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
agsels and lizbilities carried at fair value:

Aszels
(rher
Significant Significant

Qrooted Ohservable Taobservable

Prices Inputs Inpurs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
Forward Foreign Currency

Contracts 5 — 5 404,372 5 — % 404,372
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3 Valuation (Continued)

Liabilitics
Other
Significant ificant

Quoted Ohservable Unobgervable

Prices Inpuis Inputs
Description (Level ) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Forward Forcign Currency

Contracts ] — 3 645074 8 — 5 645,074

It is the Fund's policy to recognize transfers in and fransfers out at the fair value ag of the beginning
of the year,

4, Forward Foreign Currency Confracts

Thee Fund muy enter into a forward foreign currency contract to hedge against foreign currency exchange
rate risk on its non-15D denominated securities and units or to facilitate semlement of a foreign currency
denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract i an agreement between two
parties (o buy and sell a currency at a ¢t price with delivery and settlement at a future date. The contract
is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealized gamn or
logs, When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through either delivery of the currencies or
offsct by cnfening into another forward foreign currency contract, the Fund recopnizes a realized gain
or loss equal to the difference between the value of the coniract at the time it was opened and the value
of the contract at the time it 15 closed.

Formard foreign currency contracts imvolve elements of market risk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreipn exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
enlering into these contracts from the potential mability of the counterparties to mect the terms of
their contracts. The fellowing table presents the open forward foreign currency contracts as of March

i1, 2018:
CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE UNREALLZED
SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY TO DELIVER FOR GAIN (LOSS)
Aprit-03-2018 Citibank, M.A Al 2 LR TI50 | L0000 ¥ 1,720
April-03=2018 HSEC Hank plz AUD 287444 uUsp Li33.611 5607
Apri-03-2018 Murgan Stanlmy & Co ALD B 344, T34 i o LT [ Sl 200
Trdermacional plo
Apell-03-2018 Miprgan Sianley & Co. ALD 206, kB E0 =gl 1,361
Irierational plo
April-0G-2008 URs AG AL 460,627 1sEn 355,958 2261
April=0G.2015 (rokdmian Sachs Infermational BRL 1,810,558 1550 S48, T 4075
Meny-013-20 13 Grohimas Sachs Inlcrnetioeal HRL 266,792 usn B0, 000 (¥
April-03-2018 Morpan Staaley & Co BEL 14927391 usn &,522 T&T 33500
Ietcrracional plo
April-05-2008 Geoklman Suchs Inlernational Y 11599.005472 UsSD 11430318 144 0538
Apnl-E-2018 1A% Ak Iy 42,569,000 5n A0 000 (148
April-05-201% UBS AG IFy TE0, Y80 249 ushn T 249,036 21T
Wyt B "BS Al Ty LT Lt 1] 31,468 ___-Ea
338015
10
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4. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (Continued)

CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE UNREALIZED
SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY TO RECEIVE FOR GATN (LSS
Apeil-03-201% HSRC Bank plc PAL] TAET A5 USD 1950935 g 2.0
Wiy 5201 TISHC Bank ph ALY 1,628 303 USD 1240082 {102
April-3-2008 Morgan Siamlcy & Cao AL 4.55] 082 WD 650 {143,433}
Imternational ph
Melay=L3 201 B Morgan Stmley & Cn ALy #4475 TN G455 5% 1 35.040)
Isternaticenl ple
Apri-I3-2058 LB AG AUD 450,520 ] iy, 000 (B.672)
Mmy-03 2018 LUBS AG AUD pard il UiD 193,612 [LGTL)
AprIE-I0LE Cralldenien Sacha Inlemational BRL 1A10,558 UsD 556,453 (11,854)
Muy-03-2018 Craldman Bachs Inlemationad BRL LAN0E5 vsh Hran 3,301}
Agrill 32018 Margan Stenley & Co, BRL 14,927,381 Vs 4sbieeT (95,400}
Interrustiosal pl
M3 201E Mocpen Stanley & Ca BRL 14927391 B 451033 (10,957
Inszreacineal ple
AgmiHI3-201% Craldmas Saald Inlanatonal ™Y L1999 005472 UFA0  FI24R 666 21,599
May-02-2018 Galdman Sacks Intemational IPY 1,199,005, 472 USD  1E 42 617 (145,724
Apnl3-2018 HERC Bark ple JBY TG4 AL TG 17,523
Apnl-03-2018 LIS AG Y 319.2THTRR 5D TR 510G S2R
Apnl03.2018 URE A5 Y 1397002 L e] 31,409 [
Mrp02-201% UBS G Y TE008%.249 USh 7263685 (#2731
(594317
Tuodal Met Unrealized (Loss) on Forward Forcign Curreacy Confracts 5 {248,702)
Corrency Legend

AU - Audmiisn Dellar
BEL - Braziliam Real
ITY = Japancss Yo
L300 - 115, Diollar

A Charges and Fees

Investment Manager Fee
Investment Manager's fee is charged o the Mastsr Fund for the services provided to the Master Fund
and Fund.

Trusiee Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of 87,500, which is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears.

Administrater Fee
The Fund is charged an annual fee of £10,000 and an additional $10,000 annually for each
additioral Class in excess of the first three Classes.

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee iz acerued daily and pavable quarterly in arrears at an annwal rate of 0.80% of
average daily net assets of the Fund,

Apent Company Fee

The Agent Company fee is acerucd daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anowal rate of 0.05%
of averape daily net assets of the Fund.
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b, Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's wnit activity for the vear ended March 37, 2018:
Vear Ended March 31, 2018

AL RRL Iy
Umbis Amevuni I'mlit Amou nt nlts Amnani
Unizt tsued I 249 BAR W 5 FEFRTT 11,600 § BB IR
Units reponchased [RR4.21T) [3.715817) (179320} {1,085, 188 (78,257} 15,832, 765)
et (dacrense] (RAETAENS (NG5 (140,524} % [EEEREDY (Bb,ES1)S  [49%K,050)
) Total
Linity Amapnl Units Amwoant
Uinits hemsed 63405 § 00980 BELETE & 62065
Uhitz repurchased (ZOGTREY) (25404 4RS) WIEEST  [(3RIS1AIE
Ft { drsicase) ZAMAST)S __(20.677.055) (RO TRIIS _{1).956.582)
1. Financial Highlights
Selecied Per Unit Data Year Ended March 31, 2018
AL'D BRL Py TS
Met asset value, beginning of year $ 6558 § 6320 § TIO00e £ BEN4
Met investment income' ! 0.193 0.182 2255 0.259
Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) (0070 (0.037) 0.592 (0.165)
‘Total income from investrrent operations _ D123 0046 2847 0094
Distributions to unitholders (0.465) _ (0.720) _ (3.259) __ (0.360)
Met asset value, end of vear § 6216 8§ 5746 3 THI94 5 HS4AR
i e TS R et
Total retarn % 1.88 231 370 .07
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Expénses % 205 208 205 2.08
Met investment incone % 3.00 3,00 300 1040

1 Net mvestment inceme per wmit has been calcubaied based upon average unlis cuteranding for the vear.

4 Teau! rebarn caloudation is based on the vabug of a single wmil of participation guistanding throughout the vear i represents
the percentape change in the net asset waloa per unil beiveeen the beginaing and end ofthe yvear, excluding distnbobons
ta unstha blers.

The above ratios are caleulated for the participating units as a whele. An individual unitholder's total

return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit fransactions,

The above ratio and per unit data includes the Fund's pro rata allocations of income, expenses, and
realized and unrealized gain or loss from the Magter Fund.

8. Derivative Instruments

The Fund may tranzact in a variety of derivative instruments including forwards for trading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being forsign exchange risk, The fair value of these
derivative instruments 15 incloded as p separate line item within the Statement of Assets and Liabilites
by contract tvpe.

12
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March 31, 2018

8. Derivative Instruments {Continned)

The following tables provide information about the fair values end the location of derivatives not accoumted
for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and Liabilitics at March
31, 2018 and are grouped by derivative type:

Asiel
Derivatives'!
Foreign
Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts b 404,372

Liability
Derivatives'™

Foreign
Exchange Hisk

Forward Foreign Currency Coniracls 3 645,074

B Fomaard foreign currancy contracts are shown as separate line items on the Statement of Assets and Lizbilities

The following tables pravide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2018. The first table provides additional detail about the
amounts and sourees of gains or losses realized on derivatives during the vear. The second table provides
additional information about the ehange in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the Fund's derivatives
during the year. The realized and unrcalized gains and losses from derivatives are presented as separate
linz items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of Realized
Gain on
Derivatives
Recognized

Forelgn
Exchange Risk
Foarward Foreign Currency Contracts s 1,259,147

Chanée In Unrealized
ain {Loss)
on Derivatives
Recognized

Foreign
Exchange Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts - (520,707)
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& Derivative Instruments (Continued)
During the vear ended March 31, 2018, the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was az follows:

Monthly

Average

Valones
Forward Currency Contracts to Deliver''! % (35.655.169)
Forward Currency Contracts o Receive™ 73,387,393

M This amaunt, converted to prosentational summeney whese applicable, coresponds (o the representative average pavable
value ot setifement date based oo the manthly activity of the Fund.

3 This nenot, comverted t preseetntions] currency where applicable, corresponds to the repressntative avemge receiveble
vahue at sstilement date bassd on the manthly sctivity of the Fand

9. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty”s credil nisk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by the
value of any collateral received. The Fund's exposure to credit risk gssociated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inkerant m sueh ransactions that are reeognized
within the Slatement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund mmimizes counterparty credit risk through
credit limits and approvals, eredit monitoring procedures, executing master nefling arrangements, and
managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty credit
risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assels in order (o appropriately reflect
the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market quotes recetved
from comnterparties of other market participants since these quotes may not fully reflect the eredit
rigk of the counferparties to the dervative instruments.

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset derivative assets and liabilities that are subject
to netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Information is presented below
for all derivative assets and habilines that are subjeet to an enforceable Master Netting Agreement

("MNA™Y
Offeetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2018
Amounts Presented in the
Statement of Aseets and Liabilities
Assely Liabilities
Forwan] Foreige Cutrency Contracls 5 404,372 % &45.074
Total desivatrve asaetz and liabilines in the Stcerent of Aszets & Liabilities
siibect tooa MNA 5 43T 5 545,074
14
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9. Offsetting Assets and Liabilitics (Continued)
Derivative Assets and Collateral Received

Gross
Amounts of
Asgels
Presented in
the Statement
of Assels and Financial Cash Heceived
Liabilities Instrument as Collateral Met Amonnt™
Chithank, WA= % 1,720 % — % H 1,720
Galdman Sachs International™ 175,727 {161,538) - 14,186
HSBC Bank ple™ 431340 (43,130} -
Murgan Stanley & Co.
Intesmational ple™™? 88,130 (E8.130) == =
UBS AGH 9 BaS [95,65%) -_ -_
Tl 3 404372 % [IE8 4531 5 — % 15,909

mm'ﬂ.ﬂ nrnaul-t tepresents the net amoum? recenable from iz counterparty i the svent of default
1 Oiver the Counter.

Derivative Liabilitics and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amoonts of
Liahilitics
Presented in
Ihi Siatement
of Asseis and Financial Cash Pledged
Linbilitles Instrament a8 Collateral  Net Amount™
Goldraan Sachs ntermnational ™ 3 161,598 % (161538 § — & —
HSEC Bauk ple™™ $3,852 (43,1300 - 10,722
Morgan Stanley & Co.
International ple™’ F2TRE0 (88,0300 - 239,730
UBS AG™ 101 834 {95.665) — £,150
Total 5 ST % (188,460 % = § 256,611

4 Mol amount represents the net amoant pavible doe i the counterparty in the event of defanli,
2 Orver the Counter,

i Fund Investment Risks

Hedging Tranzachons Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intemded to limit or reduce investrent nisk, but can also be
expected 1o limit or reduce the potential for profit, Motwithstanding the foregoing, te the extent that
aszets of the Fund attributable to & particular Class of units are insufficient fo satisfy the lizhilities
aszociated with 2 hedging trangaction with respect to such Class of units, such amount efthe lisbilities
that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of unitz of the Fund,
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10, Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Derivative Instruments Rigk

The Fund may inve st in various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs that ane different
from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and cosiz presented by imvesting directly in securilies
and cther more traditional investments. Following are additional risk factors concerning the use of
derivatives:

® Managentent Rivk: Denvative products are specialized instruments that require irvestment technigoes
and risk anakyvses different from those associated with siocks and bonds. The suecessful use of
derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only of the underlying
instrument but also of the derivative itself In particular, the use and complexity of derivatives
require the maintenance of adequate controls to monitor the ransactions entered into, and the
ability to gssess the rigk that a derivative adds to the Fund's portfolis.

& Counferpariy Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fumd to the risk that the counterparsty
will not be able or willing 1o make fimely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially during wvsvally adverse market conditions. If the counterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractual rights.
Counterparty rigk is more pronounced iF s counterparty”'s obligations exceed the amoun? of collateral
held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon default by
the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from the
marked-to-market valug of the instrument.

& Documentatien Risk: Many denvative instruments have documentation nisk. Because the conlract
for each over-the-counter dermvative transaction is individually negotiated with a specific counterparty,
there exists the risk that the partics may interprol contractual terms differently. If that ocours,
the costand unpredictabiliy of the lepal proceedings required for the Fund to enforce its coniractual
rights may lead the Fund to decids not to pursiee its claims against the counterparty. The Fund,
therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the Investment Manager
believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those pavments may be delayed or
made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litgation,

Risks Associated with [nvestment in the Master Fund

The Fund, through its investment in the Master Fund, is exposed to vartous types of nisks. As the Fund's
assels are invested in the Master Fund, they are primarily exposed to the risks faced by the Master
Fund. A summary of risks is discussed in the Master Fund's financial statements, which are anached
and sheuld be read in conjunction with the Fund's financial statements.

11. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course ofbusiness, the Fund enfers info contracts that contain a varety of representations
and warrantics, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangéments is unknowi, as this would involve fubure claims that may be made against the Fond that
have not yet occurred. Based onexperience, management is of the view that the risk ofloss in connection

16
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Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {(Continued)

March 31, 2018

11. Contingencies and Commitments (Continued)
with these potential indemmification obligations is remote: however, there can be no assurance that
material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could adversely impact
the business of the Fund.

12. Subsequent Events

As of May 30, 2018, the date the financial statements were available 1o be issued, no subsequent events
or trangsctions had occurred that would have matenally impacted the financial statements as
presented.

17
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2019 31
2019 2018

12 686,138 74,542 1,109,542 120,541

686,138 74,542 1,109,542 120,541

13 25,378,626 2,757,134 28,197,666 3,063,394

13 459,793 49,952 395,798 42,999

14 35,061,841 3,809,118 32,406,435 3,520,635

11,597,685 1,259,972 16,844,419 1,829,978

72,497,945 7,876,177 77,844,318 8,457,007

16,17 (15,666,888) (1,702,051)  (17,679,249) (1,920,674)

56,831,057 6,174,126 60,165,069 6,536,333
57,517,195 6,248,668 61,274,611 6,656,874
16 (48,205) (5.237) (196,579) (21,356)
17 (1,623,200) (176,344) (309,861) (33,663)
55,845,790 6,067,087 60,768,171 6,601,854
18 11,050,010 1,200,473 11,050,010 1,200,473
44,795,780 4,866,614 49,718,161 5,401,381
55,845,790 6,067,087 60,768,171 6,601,854
2019 19
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2019 2018
73,349,360 7,968,674 84,060,544 9,132,338

(67,935,216) (7,380,482) (69,653,046) (7,567,107)

945,363 102,704 720,275 78,251

(9,978) (1,084) (5,893) (640)

6,349,529 689,813 15,121,880 1,642,841

10 (1,271,910) (138,180) (1,791,441) (194,622)
5,077,619 551,633 13,330,439 1,448,219

49,718,161 5,401,381 53,887,722 5,854,362

5,077,619 551,633 13,330,439 1,448,219

1 (10,000,000) (1,086,400) (17,500,000) (1,901,200)
44,795,780 4,866,614 49,718,161 5,401,381
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2019 31
17
(M)
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2019 2018

10,771,964 13,777,024
16,928,853 15,998,090
12,431,090 13,241,469
33,217,453 41,043,961

73,349,360 84,060,544

199/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

200/266

2019 2018
189,847 157,807
4,070 4,114
1,767,752 1,795,450
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9,978 5,893
457,518 476,276
24,666 27,068
(281,796) (325,057)
(90,057) (144,485)
106,744 127,448
(680,254) (378,181)

2019 2018
16,883,324 18,068,130
2,418,062 2,628,804
533,030 937,022
920,985 919,802
20,755,401 22,553,758

2019 2018
26 25
15 18
25 23
66 66

2019 2018
1,553,778 1,429,116
41,466 39,278
558,774 629,456
2,154,018 2,097,850
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1,601,888 2018 1,318,704
150,623 2018 126,444
1,224,549 2018 1,073,841
154,852 2018 160,336
920,985 2018 919,802
2019 31 2018
10
2019 2018
1,329,789 1,765,664
(c 20,986 117,557
6,116
1,356,891 1,883,221
(84,981) (91,780)
1,271,910 1,791,441
2019 31 2019 31

19 2018 19 2018
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2019 2018
6,349,529 15,121,880
19 2018 19 1,206,410 2,873,157
29,801 24,929
20,986 117,557
6,116
9,998 10,798
(1,401)
(1,235,000)
1,271,910 1,791,441
2018 155,941 239,857 395,798
(13,251) (7,735) (20,986)
34,498 50,483 84,981
2019 31 177,188 282,605 459,793
i ii
d
2017 19
2020 17
11
10,000,000 2018 17,500,000

99.99 2018 174.98
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636,610 4,492 100,861 136,457 3,736,678 4,615,098
56,379 2,401 58,780
(128,875) (128,875)
564,114 4,492 100,861 136,457 3,739,079 4,545,003
337,117 208 4,416 3,163,815 3,505,556
180,158 899 25,398 275,729 482,184
(128,875) (128,875)
388,400 1,107 29,814 3,439,544 3,858,865
175,714 3,385 71,047 136,457 299,535 686,138
299,493 4,284 96,445 136,457 572,863 1,109,542
69,886
94,551
2019 2018
12,498,786 15,371,005
11,434,432 11,258,268
360,653 472,705
1,084,755 1,095,688
25,378,626 28,197,666
10,800,000
28 12 0.125
10
80,005 2018 91,942
459,793 2018 395,798
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3,322,718 2,323,743
19,569 18,240
2,649,966 3,426,108
9,674,635 11,911,158
15,666,888 17,679,249
122,604
48,205 73,975
48,205 196,579

2019 2018
19,569 18,240
48,205 73,975
67,774 92,215
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 12

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 201%
Registered No, 2479672

ot 2019 2018
5 5

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 12 686,138 1,109,542
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 686,138 1,108,542
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amounts flling due within one year 13 25,378,626 28,197,666
DEBTORS: amounts flligg due after more than one
yedr 13 459,793 305,798
Invvestments 14 15,061,841 32,406,435
Cash at bark and in hand 11,597,685 16,844,419

T2,4%7 945 77,844,318
CREDITORS: amouns falling diee within one year la, 17 (15,666,888) (17,679,24%)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 36,831,057 60,165,069
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 57,517,195 61,274,611
CREDITORS: amounts faling due after more than one
year 16 {48,205) (196,579)
Provisions for lnbilties 17 (1,623,200) (309,861)
NET ASSETS 55,845,790 60,768,171
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 11.050,010 11,050,010
Retained eamings 44,795,780 49,718,161
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 55,845,790 60,768,171

The notes on pages 13 to 28 form an integeal part of these financial statements.

The financial sjatements on pages 11 to 28 were approved for issue by the board on its behalf by:

M. Zelouf Date: 19" June 2019
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 1

Statement of income and retained earnings
for the year ended 31 March 2019
Registered No. 2479672

Mote 2019 20018
£ ]

Turnover 4 73,349 360 B4, 060,544
Administrative expenses 5.6,7.8,9 (67,935,216) (69,653,046)
Irterest receivable and similar income b 945,363 720,275
Interest payable and similar expenses 5 (9,978) (5.893)
Profit before taxation 6,349,529 15,121,880
Tax on profit 1] (1,270,910% (1,791.441)
Profit for the financial year 5,077.619 13,330,439
Retained earnings at the begimning of the year as

previously stated 49,718,161 53,887,722
Profit for the financial year 5,077,619 13,330,439
Drvidends 11 (10,004,000} (17.500,000)
Retained earnings at the end of the year 44,795,780 49,718,161

All amounts are in respect of continuing activities.

The notes on pages 13 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 13

1. General information

Western Asset Management Company Limited (“the Company™), is an investment manager, principally
providing investment management services to both external clients and to clients of its affiliates
{collectively “Western™). The Company is authorised by the FCA and makes its Pillar 3 diselosures on
its website — www. westernasset.com.

The Company is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales, The address of its principal place of business is 10 Exchange Sguare, Primroge Street,
London EC2A 2EN. The ultimate parent company is Legg Mason Ine. (*Parent™).

2. Statement of compliance

These individual finaneial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Treland” (“FRS 102™), and the Companies
Act 2006,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policics applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
Tair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
eritieal pecounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition
seldom equal the related actual results. Included within provisions for liabilities is an amount
related to dilapidation costs, which the Company expecis to incur under the terms of its tenancy
agreement. There is some uncertainty around the amount provided for as management are unable
to determine the scale of restoration works that will be enforced by the landlord at the end of the
Company’s lease. The amount provided for is based on management’s best estimate and based on
an internal assessment. Further details are provided in Note 17,

{b) Exemptions for qualifving entities under FRS 10
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complied with.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i} from disclosing a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the period;

{ii} from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifving entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company's cash flows;

(i) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and
disclosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables are included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019 14

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feomtinued)

{iv) from disclosing detail of certain share-based payment amrangements required under FRS 102
section 26 in respect of shares based payments of the Parent issued to employees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements.

(v} from disclosing the Company’s key management personnel compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7.

{c) Functional currency
The funetional and reporting currency of the Company is U$ Dollar, as the directors consider this
to be the most appropriate currency for the Company”s business,

(d) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into US Deollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions during the period expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they eccur. Any foreign exchange differences
are taken to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings in the year in which they arise.

Foreign currency non-monetary assets are carried in the balance sheet translated into US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the menth end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired,

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date is 1.299733 (2018: 1.403334)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1,308142 (2018: 1.339243)

() Revenue recognition
Tumnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and

represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendered, net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue in respect of performance fees is recognised in the
financial statements at the end of the related contractual performance period when all performance
criteria have been met and the outcome of the ransaction can be measured reliably.

(f oyee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to employees, including annual bonus arrangements,
paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.

(i) Short Term Benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the service is received.

(i) fneentive Plans
The Company operated an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT™) as part of the overall
remunetation strategy for employees.  Annually, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT. Where the EBT is considered to remain under the
control of the Company, the assets and liabilities of the EBT are included in the Company’s
financial statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant employees.
See Motes 7 and 8 for further detail.

The Company has set up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contribution

seheme and is administered by a third party, Contributions to the pension scheme are charged
to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings. See Note 9 for further details.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019 15

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feomimued)

() Emplovee bhenefits (eomtinued)

(iil) Anmeral Bowus Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for employees. An expense is recognised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation to make payments under the plan as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(iv) Share Based Payments
Under the EBT, the Parem awards cligible employees restricted shares of the Parent. The
Company has accounted for such share-based payments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany payable position,
with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered.

Under the Parent’s share option plan, the fair value of stock options issued are measured at
grant date, then, periodically as shares vest and employees become unconditionally entitled to
the shares, an employee expense is recognised, with no adjustments recorded for changes in
market value of the Parent for the shares granted.

{g) Taxation
Taxation expense for the period comprises curvent and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
period. Tax is recognised in the Staternent of Income and Retained Eamings.

Current or deferred faxation assets and habilities are not discounted.

(i} Current Tex
Current tax is the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
or prior years. Tax is calculated on the basis of 1ax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

{ii} Deferred Tax
Deferred tax arises from timing differences. These timing differences arise from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in financial statements.

Deefierred 1ax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses
and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deeferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference,
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 16

3, Summary of significant accounting policies (contimed)

{h) Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is caleulated 1o write off the cost of the tangible fixed assets on a straight
line basis over their expected economic lives, The principal annual rates used for the purpose are:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20 - 33%

Depreciation is charged on a monthly basis and a full month’s charge is made in the month
following acquisition,

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork is nod provided as no diminution of its value is expected.

(i) Dividends
Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholder are recognised as a lability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of directors. These amoeunts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Investment
The Company's investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liquidity Funds ple (“WALF") are
current asset investments and are stated at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Caszh and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term

highly liquid investments with original maturitics of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(I} Leased assets
At inception the Company assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets. The asscssment
considers whether the arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement,
See Note 19 for further details.

(i) Finanee leased assers
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as finance Jeases. Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
assets at the fair value of the leased asset. Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset,

Asgets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset,
Assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. The capital element of lease
abligations is recorded as a liability on inception of the arrangement.

(i} Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operaling
leases, Payments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained
Earnings on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 17

3. Summary of significant accounting policies feamtinued)

(1) Lease incenfives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the Statement of Income and
Retained Earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(m} Financial instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instruments.

Section 11 {Basic Financial Instruments) and Section 12 {Ciker Financial Instruments) were issued
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derecognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments, Section 11 applies to basic financial instruments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank loans,
intercompany pavables and common and preference shares. Section 12 applies to other more
complex financial instrumems and transactions such as derivatives, including currency futures and
forward foreign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recognised at cost or amortised cost,

Derivatives are complex financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivalive contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in Statement of lncome and Retained Earnings as
appropriate, The Company has no derivatives at 31 March 2019,

{n) Pravisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. See Note 17 for further details.

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it is not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount cannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i)
when the existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future
events not wholly within the Company's control, Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an outflow is remote or the outflow is immaterial.

4, Tumover
Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts receivable for the management

of investment partfolios for clients and an allocation of turnover from the Company's affiliates where
the Compary is responsible for servicing the client.
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4. Turnover fecontinued)

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

20109 2018
3 b
United Kingdom 10,771,964 13,777,024
United States of America 16,928,853 15,998,090
Europe {exclhuding United Kingdom) 12,431,090 13,241,469
Rest of the World 33,217,453 41,043,961
73,349 360 84,060,534
5. Operating profit
2009 2018
] ¥

This & stated after charging / (crediting)
Auditors' remuneration - audit services 189,847 157807
Auditors' remuneration - other services pursuant to legislation 4,070 4114
Lease of office premises 1,767,752 1,795,450
Gain on foreign exchange (58.459) (3.458)
Interest payabl: and similar charges 9978 5,893
Diepreciation - on tangible owned fixed assets 457518 476,276
Depreciation - on tangible fived assets held under finance kases 24,666 27068
[mterest receivable (281,7%6) (325,057)

Income from current asset mvestments

- Realised gains - EBT (90,057) {144,485)
= Unrealised Joss 106,744 127,448
- Gains on nvestments - WALF {680,254} (378,181}

6. Information regarding directors and employees

Employment costs incurred by the Company and included in administrative expenses comprise:

019 2018
£ 3
Wages and salaries 16883324 18,068,130
Social security costs 2418062 2628804
Restricted stock and stock options in parent Company 533,030 937,022
Oither pension costs SRS 919,802
20755401 ¥2,553,758
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6. Information regarding directors and employees {continued)

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Company
during the year was:

2019 2018
M, Mo,
By activity
Paortfolio management 26 23
Marketing & client services 15 18
Administration 25 ]
66 B6
Aggregate directors' emoluments related to the highest paid director are as follows:
2019 2008
5 3
Emoliments 1,553,778 1429116
Pension contributions 41466 19278
Employee deferred benefits 558,774 629,456
2154018 2,097 850

Retirement benefits are accruing to 1 (2018: 1) director under a defined contribution scheme. Share
options were exercised by nil (2018: 1) directors during the year and represents the highest paid director.

The emoluments of the other 2 dircetors (201 8: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two directors are employees and { or directors of the Parent
and / or a number of fellow subsidiaries and it is not possible to make an accurate apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company.  Accordingly, the above details include no emoluments in
respect of these two directors,

Additionally, during the year 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $172,595 was paid by the Company 1o the highest paid director,

7. Share-based payments

The following share-based award programme, which is settled in equity of the Parent is in operation by
the Company for eligible executive directors and key employees.

Legy Mason Inc. resiricted stock unit plan
The Parent issues restricted stock units to certain employees subject to continued employment with the
Company. Vesting oceurs over a four vear period with 25% of the gramted restricted stock units

becoming vested and distributed in shares, which are available to be sold within a few days of the vesting
date each year. Ownership of the restricted stock units are transferred to the employee once vested.
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8. Incentive plans
The Company has one active EBT for the employee deferred incentive plan.

The trustees appointed to “The Western Asset Management Company International Employee
Deferred Incentive Plan™ (“EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There is no cash balance in the current year (2018: 80) held in the EBT. Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14,

As at 31 March 2019, awards made under the EDIP vest between one and four years, and any
unvested awards are forfeited if an employee leaves the Company for any reason other than
retirement. All forfeitures revert to the Company. The expense related to the awards and any gains
or losses associated with them are recorded in the year in which the awards vest. The method of
settlement of the awards either in cash or the Parent’s issued restricted stock is at the discretion of
the Western Asset compensation commitiee.

EDIP awards totalling 51,723,446 were made to senior employees attributable to the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 {in May 2018, EDIP awards made for the 2018 financial year: $1,803,260).

An acerual for awards totalling $1,601 888 (2018: 81,318,704) is included in these financial
statements, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP. In addition $150,623 {2018
$126,444) has been provided in respect of employer's national insurance payable on these awards,

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamnings for the EDIP is $1,224,549
(2018%: $1,073,841) and the employer's national insurance on this amounts to $154,852 (2018
$160,336).

9. Pension

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scottish Widows, an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and
amounted to $920,985 (2018: 5919,802). At 31 March 2019 there were no pension contributions in
arrears (2018; $0).

10. Tax on profit

a. Tax on profit
2019 2018
b3 b1
Current year tax charge 1,329,789 1,765,664
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - see note (¢) 20,986 117,557
Adjustments. in respect of FX difference of prior periods 6,116 -
Current year tax charge 1,356,891 1,883,221
Deferred taxation - current vear timing differences (84,981 (91,780)
Total tax on profis 1,271,910 1,791 441
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10, Tax on profit (continued)

b. Reconeiliation of tax charge

Tax assessed for the year ended 31 March 2019 is higher than (2018: lower than) the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK for the year ended 31, March 2015 199 (20182 19%)

019 2018
3 3

Profit before taxation £, 349,529 15,121,880
Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 1,206,410 873,157
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 29801 24929
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 20986 117,557
Adustments in respect of FX difference of prior periods 6,116 -
Adpstments for reduction in corporation tax rate on timing differences 9.99% 10,798
Unprovided adjustiment in respeet of current year tax charge {1.401) -
Group relief from group companies - { 1,235,000)
Tatal year tax charge 1,271,910 1,791,441

The current year tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group companies as no
group relief has been granted.

¢. Deferred tax
Employee
Fined Assets  pemuneration Total
5 % 5
Asset as at | Apeil, 2018 155,941 239 857 395,798
Adjustmerits in respect of prior periods (13,251} (7.735)  (20986)
Curremt year eredit 34,498 50,483 B4 081
Asset as at 31 March, 2019 177,188 282 605 458,793

The timing differences related to: (i) accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets: and (ii) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to employees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and is distributed to participants.

The directors consider that it is more likely than not that there will be sufficient taxable profits in the
future such as to realise the deferred tax asset and therefore the asset has been recognised in these
financial statements,

d. Tax rate changes
The tax rate for the current period is the same as the prior period as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% sinee 1 April 2017. On the basis that the UK Corporation

tax will decrease to 17% from 1 April 2020, the Company’s deferred tax balances have been effected
at the lower rate,
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11. Dividends
Dividends of $10 million were declared and paid during the year to the Company's sole shareholder
Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited (2018: $17.5 million), equating to $9%.99 per
ordinary share (2018: $174.98) and there are no amounts outstanding in relation to dividends included
in these financial statements.

12. Tangible assets

IT& Conmmmicaions  Furnitue & Oftice Lasserherkl
Equipene Fivugs  Baquipment A lmprovennts Tiaul
% ] ] H ] H

Cosr
Asat | April 2018 636,610 44592 100,861 136,457 3,736,678 4,615,098
Additions 56379 - - - 2401 58,780
Dieposak. (128.875) - - - B {128,875
Asg at 31 March 2019 Sed, 114 4492 LU 136,457 1,739,079 4,545,003

Accumwipted depeeciation

Asat 1 Aprd 2018 317117 0% 1416 - 1,163,818 1,505,556
Charge for the financial veor 180,158 £99 25,398 - 275,729 452,184
Disposals {128,875) - . - - (128,875)
As at 31 Masch 2019 IRE A0 1,107 9814 - 3430544 3,058,865
Net book vl

31 March 2019 L4 alis 11047 L6457 28535 1IN
31 March 2013 209,493 4284 445 L3GAS]  STAE LLoS

The net book value of tangible assets includes an amount of $69,886 (2018: $94,551) in respect of
office equipment held under finance leases.

13, Debtors
2009 2018
5 b ]

Amounts flling due within one year :
Trade debtors 12,498,786 15,371,005
Amounts owed by group undertak ings 11,434,432 11,258,268
Orther debtors 360,653 472,705
Prepayments and accrued ncome 1,084,755 1,095,688

25,378,626 28,197,666
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13, Debtors feoniimted)

Amounts owed by group undertakings includes a $10.8 million loan to an affiliate. The loan bears
interest at 12-month LIBOR plus .125% with a maturity date of May 28, 2020. The remaining balance
is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed date of repayment and is repayable on demand.

The Company makes available to all employees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
by ten monthly installments, The balance of 80,005 (2018: $91,942) is included in other debtors.

Amounts falling due after more than one year from Deferred Tax is $459,793 (2018: $395,798). Sec
note 10 for further details,

14, Investments

The Company has an investment of $2,847,191 (2018: $2,847,020) in EDIP. This plan is invested in a
range of investment funds managed by Western,

During the vear, the EBT penerated realised gains of $90,057 (2018: $144 485), and unrealised loss of
$106,743 (2018: gain $127,448).

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series, The WALF fund is a
highly rated money-market fund and has same day liquidity, The principal investment objective of the
fund is the preservation of capital. This investment is carried at fair value and at the balance sheet date
was 532,214,650 (2018: 529 559,415). The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fee
share class, thereby maximising the Company's return, The Company provides investment
management services to the fund.

The Company classifies its financial assets within the EBT, which are shares and other variable-yield
securities at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.

The Company classifies its financial assets within WALF at fair value through Statement of Income
and Retained Earnings,

Financial assets designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings at
inception are those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. The Company's strategy is to invest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subseriptions and
redemptions occurring at NAV, the funds are considered to be measured at a quoted price in an active
market, :

Net gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valued financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings, together with related interest and dividend income
within “Interest receivable and similar income™ in the peried in which they arise,

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these securities are included in (a).
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14, Investments (confimed)

The Company closely monitors the valuation of assets in markets that may become less liquid.
Determining whether a market is active requires the exercise of judgment and is determined based on
facts and cireumstances of the market for the investment being measured. The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hierarchy to estimate fair value:

{a) The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market,

{b) When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place.

() If the marker for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
are not a good estimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technigque.

The tables below present investments which include the ERT assets carried at fair value.

2019 {a) {b) {©) Total

Fair value through profit and lss § 4 £ 5

Listed mvestments

- Irish Stock Exchange 35,061,541 - - 35,061,841
Total assets 35 061,541 - - 35,061,841

2018 {a) (b} (e} Total

Fair value through profit and loss £ 3 g £

Listed investmenis

- Irish Stock Exchange 32406435 - - 32406435
Total assets 32406435 - - 32406435

During the years ended 2019 and 2018, the Company did not hold investments categorised as (b) or (¢) and
correspondingly there were no transfers involving {b) or (c).

15, Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company’s activitics expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow imerest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal risk management department adhering te principles and
policies approved by the board of directors. The Company has written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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15, Financial risk management feomtiniecd)
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating intermationally, is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily to Sterling, Euro and Yen,
Foreign exchange risk arises from fiture commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company would
receive or pay in an arm's length transaction. The amount is determined using quoted prices
from independent third parties. During the year the Company mitigated its foreign exchange
risk by the use of derivative instruments administered by an affiliate, specifically currency
forward contracts. During the vear, the Company made a foreign exchange gain of $58,459
{2018 gain of $8,438).

(ii) Price risk
The Company™s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT. As all investments are held by the EBT, the risk and reward of investment returns
are borne entirely by the EBT"s participants, the Company is not exposed to price risk relating
to its ERT. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
exposed price risk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, interest rates
and the returns of the fixed income markets,

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Company-wide basis. Credit risk arises from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from owtstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companies. All the Company's
banking relationships are with highly rated banks for short term deposits and are limited to those
with a Moody®s rating of at least Baal, or with a Standard and Poor's rating of at least BBB+. The
Company assesses the credit quality of clients, taking into account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past experience and other factors, Intercompany loans may be considered only
after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing scenarios and ensuring the
Company’s minimum liguidity tolerance levels are maintained.

{c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash liguidity monitoring against set limits to ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements.

{d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company’s only significant interest-bearing asset is cash, the Company’s income and
aperating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

225/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Motes to financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2019 26
16. Creditors
2019 28
$ 3
Amounts faling due within one vear:
Amounts owed to group undertak ings 3,322,718 2,323,743
Ohbligations under finance leases 19,569 18,240
Taxation and social security 2,649,966 3,426,108
Accnak and deferred income 9,674,635 11,911,158
15,666,888 17,679,249
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Accroals and deferred income - 122,604
Ohbligations under finance leases 48,205 73,975
' 48,205 196,579

The net finance lease obligations to which the Company is commitied are:

2019 2018
5
In one year or less 19,569 18,240
Berween one and two vears 48,205 73,975
67,774 92,213

The total value of finance leases repayable by instalments, any part of which falls due after more than
five years is nil (2018: nil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.

17. Provisions for liabilities

Where leasehold office space becomes vacant or is sublet at market rates below the Company’ s master
lease rates, the Company provides for all costs, net of anticipated or contracted income, to the end of
the lease or the anticipated date of the disposal or sublease. This provision relates to office space in 10
Exchange which was sublet in 2011 and is surplus to the Company’s requirements. The provision is
expected to be utilised over the life of related leases to 2020.

The Company is currently a tenant of 10 Exchange Square and is due to vacate in early fiscal year 2020.
There is a clause in the tenancy agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be undertaken
before the property is vacated. The amounts provided are based on the current estimate of future costs
determined on the basis of the present condition of the property. In arriving at this provision, the
expected cash flows have been adjusted by assigning an appropriate probability weighting based on the
level of dilapidation work likely to be carried out.

226/266



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 27

17. Provisions for liabilities feomfinued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019, a provision of $1,462 200 (2018: $218,569) has been made for the
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs, with the increase on the provision fully charged to the
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings for the year ended 31 March 2019, The prior year provision
of $218,56% was included within accruals and deferred income falling due within one year as at 31
March 2018 and has been reclassified to provisions for liabilities as at 31 March 2019,

2019 2018

5 b
Carrying amount at 1 April 309,861 392,670
Amounts rechssified from acerualks and deferred income 218,569 -
Amounts charged! (utilised) during the year 1,094,770 {B2,809)
Balance at 31 March 1,623,200 309,861

18. Called up share capital
2019 2018
b3 b1

[ssued, called up and fully paid
100,010 (2018: 100,010 ordinary shares of 81 each 100,010 100,010
10,950,000 (2018:; 10,950,000) redeemable preference shares of §1 each 10,950,000 10.%50,000

11,050,010 11,050,010

The preference shares carry no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the preference shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006. On redemption, and at the diserction of the directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.

19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for each of the following periods;

__ 2019 2018
5 5
Land and buildings pavmems due
Wot later than one year 1,908217 2372416
Later than one year and not later than five years 38,570 2,101,974
1,946,796 4,474,390

The Company signed a 15 year lease for office premises which was effective May 2005, and under the
terms of which the Company had an initial rent free period of three years,

Provision for rental payable was made in the financial statements during the rent free period, and this

iz being released to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings so as to spread this benefit evenly
over the period of the lease.
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20, Related party disclosures

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial statements of, the group.

Consolidated financial statements of the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Mote 21.

21. Controlling parties
The immediate parent undertaking is Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited.

The ultimate controlling party is Lege Mason Inc, (“Parent™), a Company incorporated and registered
in the United States of America and listed on the New York Steck Exchange.

The only group into which the Company’s results are consolidated is the group that is headed by Legg
Masaon, Inc, Copies ol the consolidated financial statements of Legg Mason, Inc. are available from 100
International Drive, Baltimore, MD 21202, USA,

Further information can be found on the Lege Mason, Inc. website "www.leggmason.com” under
"Investor Relations”,
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BNY Mellon Fund Management
(Cayman) Limited

(
2019 600,000 6,518
(
BNY
1996
The Bank of New York Mellon
(
2019 11 3,500 1,233
(
2019 33 5,000
9,000

Western Asset Management
Company, LLC

(
2019 37,300,000 41
(
SEC
2019 WAM 3,726
Western Asset Management Company Ltd
(
2019 10
(
2019 55

Western
Asset Management Company Pte. Ltd.
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2019 38,533,679 31
2019 31
79.26
SEC
2019 48
Western
Asset Management Company Pty Ltd ACN 117 767 923
2019 18,500,769 14
2001
2019 185
DTVM Western Asset
Management Company Distribuidora de Titulos e Valores Mobiliérios Limitada
2019 69,993,098 20
2019 19 2019
108
27.97
SEC
2019 112

2019 80
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency)
Fund (the* Fund” ), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2018,
and the related statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management *s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors”® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. Inmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund as of March 31,
2018, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles.

KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 30, 2018
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Independent Auditors® Report

The Trustee
Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund, a sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency)
Fund, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2019, and the related
statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management *s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors”® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors® judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. Inmaking those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity"s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of Western Asset Bank Loan (Multi-Currency) Fund as of March 31,
2019, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles.

KPMG
Cayman Islands
May 29, 2019
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Independent auditors® report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company®s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

< have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ilreland”, and
applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019; the statement of income and retained earnings for the year ended 31 March
2019; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ( 1SAs
(UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK are further described in the
Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:
- the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the company®s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of above matters.
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However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not
a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the
terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the European Union are not clear, and it
is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the company®s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ITf we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors® report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the
audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors” report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic report and Directors® report for the year ended 31 March 2019 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
report and Directors® report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities set out on page 6,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors™ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Colleen Local (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

19 June 2019
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